el

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-\F+=ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
FEWA Interest income 7 1,229,710 902,333
B H Interest expense 8 (693,501) (394,755)
BRI EWA Net interest income 536,209 507,578
Em AR E F 5 Net premiums earned 9 3,157,652 352,414
HAWA Other income 10 249,633 414,484
FE ' ON Operating income 3,943,494 1,274,476
HREAFE  ENFER Net claims incurred, benefits paid and
REFHAEGEE movement in policyholders’ liabilities 9 (3,321,037) (641)
e FEREES S Net commission and levy expenses 9 (142,991) (140,454)
s Operating expenses 11 (412,388) (304,196)
RETIRABE B A 48 & V5 Tl Operating profit before impairment 67,078 829,185
WERE Charge of impairment allowances 14 (134) (453)
BRBE AR R Profit before taxation 66,944 828,732
T8 Taxation 15(a) 59,614 (22,337)
A EaF Profit for the year 126,558 806,395

F166E 282 BT Air & BRI —30
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-\F+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FaxT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
I E 5 A Profit for the year 126,558 806,395
Hit2HE K : Other comprehensive income:
HEWEEH > BEER Items that are or may be reclassified
KIIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
AHERS ¢ Available-for-sale securities:
— RER W FEE — net unrealised gains - 191,162
— HERATFEZSHEA — fair value changes transferred to
W income statement on disposal 13 - (83,161)
— fIE — tax effect 15(b) - 17,195
NFHES ARG EE Debt securities at fair value through
H&@E’Mﬁ% % other comprehensive income:
— NEEEEF) — change in the fair value (7,182) -
— ESIEEEED) — change in the loss allowance 14 14 =
NEFHM2ME(ER) /IS - Other comprehensive (loss)/income
EHBRTIA for the year, net of tax (7,168) 125,196
REEEEKFEALE Total comprehensive income for
the year 119,390 931,591

F166E 282 B Frs i st B4R AT IEREMN—3ED  The notes on pages 166 to 282 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZB-NE+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
FEx FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RekEHEe Cash and short-term funds 16 29,390,855 25,278,190
JE MR 2 R PR Interest and remittance receivables 17 437,919 343,978
TEERTA Derivative financial instruments 18 161,047 333,727
BENEEFE Loan portfolio, net 19 6,442,064 7,829,441
BHIKE - Investment securities:
— UAAFEEE AEM — fair value through other
2R comprehensive income 20(a) 5,091,664 -
— ARFEEE L ABa — fair value through profit or loss 20(b) 543,612 =
— IR SER AR — amortised cost 20(c) 11,546,833 -
— Al E — available-for-sale 20(d) - 7,138,662
— RBE 25 — held-to-maturity 20(e) - 10,347,834
SN R 175X Placements with the Exchange Fund 21 7,734,934 =
BNFIE - ke REMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 23 829,491 67,154
BEE&EE Fixed assets 24 53,766 34,329
BETIBEE Deferred tax assets 15(b) 77,866 295
BRI EE Reinsurance assets 27 171,518 164,601
BEEHAE Total assets 62,481,569 51,538,211
=L LIABILITIES
eI 8 Interest payable 25 257,468 192,133
FERTIRIE - RS K Accounts payable, accrued expenses
HMA R and other liabilities 26 5,061,679 5,363,263
MTESRITE Derivative financial instruments 18 264,386 119,064
EHHIBAE Current tax liabilities 15(b) 104,077 116,288
RiRaE Insurance liabilities 27 4,607,373 1,130,150
BB TEEE S Debt securities issued 28 37,292,877 34,840,706
BEAE Total liabilities 47,587,860 41,761,604
R EQUITY
E=FE ARLRAR R Capital and reserves attributable
&t to the equity holders:
[N Share capital 29 7,000,000 2,000,000
{RE m A Retained profits 6,263,342 5,889,254
[ B2 o 1S Contingency reserve 1,632,818 1,679,837
NEERFE Fair value reserve (2,451) 207,516
FEm B Total equity 14,893,709 9,776,607
EERERBE Total liabilities and equity 62,481,569 51,538,211
EEREA-T—NFHNA=+HBILAERKET] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April
1T 2019.
PR Norman T. L. Chan =S Raymond L. C. Li

BIFEF#F#H7TEE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
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SoRREBE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-\F+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

T RE&ER il DERE a5

Share Retained  Contingency Fair value
capital profits reserve reserve Total
b TAT ThL T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZE-tF-A-B&H Balance as at 1 January 2017 2,000,000 5,023,307 1,739,389 82,320 8,845,016
RERRA Profit for the year = 806,395 = = 806,395
A2 Eka Other comprehensive income - - - 125,196 125,19
rEE2ANGER Total comprehensive income for the year - 806,395 - 125,196 931,591

BEBENEACREERRE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium earmed

BENN0%E 5% EEBREEE  fromretained profits to contingency reserve - (200,730) 200,730 - -
mERFEREDZREET Release of contingency reserve to retained profits - 260,282 (260,28) - -
R=E-tE+-A=t-H&# Balance as at 31 December 2017 2,000,000 5,889,254 1,679,837 207,516 9,776,607

RARREREERER Changes on adoption of HKFRS 9

0E8 (fiF3.1) (Note 3.1) = 200,511 = (202,799) (2,288)
RZB-N\E-A-RLETILEE Restated balance as at 1 January 2018 2,000,000 6,089,765 1,679,837 4717 9,774,319
TEEER Profit for the year = 126,958 = = 126,558
A2 Eka Other comprehensive income - - - (7,168) (7,168)
rEE2ANGER Total comprehensive income for the year - 126,558 - (7,168) 119,390
EE (1 29) Capital injection (Note 29) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000

BEFBENEADREEREE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium earmed

BENN0% 5% EEBREE  fromretained profits to contingency reserve - (209,261) 209,261 - -
mERRERDZREET Release of contingency reserve to retained profits - 256,280 (256,280) - =
WZE—-\E+-A=1—H%# Balance as at 31 December 2018 7,000,000 6,263,342 1,632,818 (2,451) 14,893,709
F166E 282 BFAE Ntk B4R 6 B MR M — & The notes on pages 166 to 282 are an integral part of these
Pk consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-\F+=ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018

TR
HK$°000

2017
THT
HK$'000

REERCBERE Cash flows from operating activities
1z Al Operating profit 66,944 828,732
AT S IBEHAFAR Adjustment for:

FEHA Interest income (1,243,385) (924,105)

FEL Interest expense 632,864 355,859

REMA Dividend income 10 (58,626) (82,878)

REIMNEES TR Income from placements with

the Exchange Fund 10 (184,934) -
e Depreciation 1 19,371 14,415
BRITESEAFITERE Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 60,637 38,896
B Charge of impairment allowances 14 134 453
BHRE (B E Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 13,675 21,772
AR FEZ(CET A=A Net loss on investments at fair
REBEFH value through profit or loss 10 13,500 -
CRHIAQTEES Change in fair value of financial
instruments (10,947) 2,661
SR SE R AT IR F IR E Net gains on disposal of investments
W5 at amortised cost 10 (192) =
HEHNERER Net gains on disposal of
e a8 available-for-sale investments 13 - (163,538)

HE B B E R Gain on disposal of fixed assets - ™
REAE RS Interest received 1,148,331 949,834
BEAFE Interest paid (567,529) (381,879)
Rt EEERBEZEF Cash flows from operating activities before

REXBIBHRERE changes in operating assets and liabilities (110,157) 660,221
JREEA A BB =& A 7€ 8 Change in time deposits with original

Trn maturity of more than three months (4,422,000) 7,520,837
R ST R 2 B Change in remittance receivables 1,113 (10,298)
BFE - e REM Change in prepayments, deposits and

BEERE other assets (762,688) 290,684
BREEE Change in loan portfolio 1,387,357 1,704,067
FEFIIRIE - FER RS REM Change in accounts payable,

BE% accrued expenses and other liabilities (301,584) 134,870
R EEFEED Change in insurance liabilities, net 3,470,306 63,026
&N E5 Exchange differences (11,553) (122,758)
REER(EH)/EEZ2BRE Cash (used in)/generated from operation (749,206) 10,240,649
(B /BREWIEA Taxation (paid)/refund (29,817) 1,417
REER (R /EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from

R 58 operating activities (779,023) 10,242,066
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HERERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2018

TR
HK$'000

2017
TET
HK$'000

REZHZ2HERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEETEE Purchase of fixed assets 24 (38,808) (30,217)
BEAATEZ( AL D Purchase of investment securities
EEBRNBEFIRE at fair value through other
comprehensive income 20(a) (1,307,246) -
BENALTFEZ (LI ABERN Purchase of investment securities
BHEE at fair value through profit or loss 20(b) (16,644) -
BB B IR SR AT IR A Purchase of investment securities
BHEE at amortised cost 20(C) (1,855,361) -
BEHHEEFRE Purchase of available-for-sale
investment securities 20(d) - (3,144,426)
BERBZRIPESRE Purchase of held-to-maturity
investment securities 20(e) - (3,112,996)
HERBEBHIREMEIIEA Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 3,465,235 6,039,777
INERES TR Placements with the Exchange Fund 21 (7,550,000) -
HERETEEEMSTIEA Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets - 1
B ETIRERE Dividend received from listed investments 58,626 82,878
RETDFERACHSFHR Net cash used in investing activities (7,244,198) (164,983)
METBHARS (RE) /RA Net cash (outflows)/inflows
FE before financing (8,023,221) 10,077,083
METHBERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITEFRPTERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 27,467,772 43,250,917
ERIRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (27,467,772) (43,250,917)
BIIBEBESMEIA Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 34,006,865 28,397,542
fBE B BITEEES Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (31,289,536) (29,509,026)
JEE R RIE Proceeds from capital injection 29 5,000,000 -
MEEBELE/(FH)2EL Net cash generated from/(used in)
HER financing activities 7,717,329 (1,111,484)
BeRkERAAEER Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
(R2) /258 cash equivalents (305,892) 8,965,599
FHRLRERARELER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 15,086,190 6,102,834
EXHRLRERRLEA Effect of exchange rates on cash and
-7 cash equivalents (2,497) 17,757
FRESRZERELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 14,777,801 15,086,190

F166ZE 282 B TSI AR A MBS HwMEZM—FF  The notes on pages 166 to 282 are an integral part of these consolidated
e financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BERBESARADN(AAT) REWE
DA (MEAEE) WEEPBHRE - BI1%
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A - BEEFERRE)  BERANE
R A EEBC R BHEBIDH R ERSL

A a M BMRIZELKAEBHRE - I
ERARFEIIRNEREER R EBE
(BRTESBMTE) WEMELFE -

BBITRRLSN - RBLULAR A TSR AR
ROEFBRERFETE - BUAE28RN
BEFEMERNER—2 -

RETABEMBREENOM B HER
B ARAETRRSE MEEE
FER AR B & At BUR IR A B TR #I
B o PRARBHEABEMNEE - R
RNEMAFHEEMBEHREBEENEE
BEEMESIE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
reqguires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.
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HMEFEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. FEEIEER

2.1. RPFEUBREEA
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Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

New and amended standards effective on 1 January

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 with a date
of transition of 1 January 2018. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9,
comparative figures have not been restated. The
details on the impact of the change in accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 3.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 is effective from 1 January 2018 and
replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue”. HKFRS 15 is
conceptually similar to HKAS 18, but includes
more granular guidance on how to recognise and
measure revenue, and also introduces additional
disclosures requirements. The Group performed
an assessment of the new standard and
concluded that changes to current accounting
policies were not required in order to comply with
the new standard, and there is no transitional
impact to retained profits.

The other standards effective in 2018 have no material
impact on the Group.
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A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2018, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 16 “Leases” sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. A
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. HKFRS 16 will
result in almost all leases being recognised on the
statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17 "Leases”. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$103,510,000
(Note 31). Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16,
the Group expects to recognise approximately
right-of-use assets of around HK$106 million
and the corresponding lease liabilities of HK$97
million, taking into account the effects of
discounting, on 1 January 2019. The standard is
effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group will apply
the standard when it becomes effective in 2019
without restating comparative information. The
Group will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of retained profits at
1 January 2019

HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” establishes
a comprehensive global insurance standard
which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures
of insurance contracts. The standard requires
entities to measure insurance contract liabilities
at their current fulfilment values. The Group is
yet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations.
The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and will
be applied retrospectively with restatement of
comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

TBEHE B H A M RERNE S There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
M ER e HAREEEL that would be expected to have a material impact on
BEATE o the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2018.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities
used for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2.3.

2.4.
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2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment |oss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.
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Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income in
the year in which they arise.

2.5. Financial assets

(@)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(OCI), or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model in which the investment is held.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Annual Report 2018
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The Group reclassifies investment securities when
and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its financial assets:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

EBRBRSERAT —T-NFER 173



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAE

B \E—HA—HE K
&= [B] LA A B 14 5528 AT (450 8 6
BRARARTFEECET A AL
2EREFIRNEERBHTE
HiZEEE - IRANRER
FEUAREERK S EE
e M4 285 BRAAETE

AR FEEET AR O
2EE: BREREH
RenEBRhEEemE
EMFANEE Mz
MESREERNRN
RERFE - MBAR
FEZLCAAEEEZE
WeHFE - REAEZZ
B EREMEE KRS
FERR - HERERR IR B M a2
KEE - FEBBRARE
Ses BB AN B
R -BETREERL
R TAEEMLE
Y 28 R R Y R AT UK
BEABERBNESEH
I H At
Wogs o 18 AR FERR

ANy =<,
DHEEER

AAFHEREE AR .
T E IR E A AN A
NFEECHAE LR
B SERENEE &
AR EZEE ABR
AR BRERENE
RN TFEZE(E AR
& B IERE IR RIE
B — i Rl EAE
BEENBE KRR
PR E i s SR IE A

25 -

RHMEEEENE LS

174  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains or losses.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the income statement within other gains or
losses in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses (ECLS)
associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 4.2 provides more details of how the
ECLs is measured.
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2.6.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), and (ii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject to
the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.7.

2.8.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).
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Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (i) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is
used, is amortised to income statement over the period
to maturity.

EBRBESERAT —T—N\&g88% 177



AR MEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) REREH

RIEERBESEB A RY
MZTET AR EZESN
BEREHHF IR E M2 E LS
WIER - LRFRERP - &
RUEB 53 1) 18 2 BB 10 LA 2 5K T

7
pt ©

R RIEHEE SR AE RS+
HERFEWRZREEHITBEA
BUREEK o

REPTABMHHE - LT
BRIt s 25K
BT ER R RS NRE
REZEAN BERMETHX
HERENRE R EREF RN
Wk - EEMETHZHT
BERER  BEMEWORF
BabE AR

(€ FTHESERAYIEFHENLT
4TH

ATRA BRI i 85T
MEELHROFTETA - LA
FELEAIRZS - EATE
TANATFERD - BFHRK
R -

2.9. HEEMTH

neRMEERABABLARELAR
BIETTRORER A HIEER S B R A
I FHERE  RAREEEENS
BafE AZeRMEERABAE
B - MR EFRIINH BN
KA AR LR R GIBITEVER &
HURMAREM - WA MBEREIER
EBBRRT - UREARRRERH Y
FEHD  BEHENEBRBENBR
T AR AT

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCI and accumulated
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
iS no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.9. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2.10.Repossessed assets

2.1

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.12.Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (functional currency). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000) which is the
Company's functional and the Company's and the
Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.13.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.

2.14.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.15.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to cash flow hedges, which are charged
or credited directly to OCI, is also credited or charged
directly to OCI and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

2.16.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.17.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.

2.18.Leases

(@) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place.
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(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies for loan
portfolio as set out in Note 4.2.

2.19.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

2.20.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.21(b).
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2.21.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (MIP) of the Group is accounted
for on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.

Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly people and
on lump-sum loans provided to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement, in return for an insurance
premium.
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50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside as a
Contingency Reserve for a period of time in accordance
with relevant regulatory guidelines and as considered
appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from the
Contingency Reserve can be made to meet excess
claims at any time during the period. At the end of
the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

(c) Life insurance contracts

Premiums are recognised as income when the cash is
received from the annuitant, and the policy is issued
and becomes effective after the completion of all the
underwriting procedures.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are
recognised. These liabilities are measured by using
the Modified Net Level Premium Valuation method for
long term business in accordance with the provision of
the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules. The movements in liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the income statement.

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all annuity
payments, surrenders, withdrawals and death claims
arising during the year. Surrenders, withdrawals and
death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of
future cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment
shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

2.22.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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Changes in accounting policies

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts previously recognised in the
financial statements.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9, the Group
has adopted HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group’s previous accounting policy under HKAS 39. Differences
arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been recognised directly
in retained profits, impairment allowances and other relevant
statement of financial position items as at 1 January 2018.

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2018

Financial assets

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classified its financial assets
in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments;
and available-for-sale investments. The classification depended
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determined the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category had two sub-categories: financial assets held
for trading, and those designated as at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset was classified
as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term or if it was part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that were managed together
and for which there was evidence of recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-making. Derivatives were also categorised
as held for trading unless they were designated as hedges.
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A financial asset was typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminated or significantly reduced a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as an accounting mismatch) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities
was managed and its performance was evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and this was the
basis on which information about the financial assets
and/or financial liabilities was provided internally to the
key management personnel; or

(i) financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modified the cash flows, could be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in
an active market and for which the Group had no intention of
trading immediately or in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments were non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management had the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
or reclassified held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an
isolated event that was beyond the Group’s control, was non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by
the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness; or (i) other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be
reclassified as available-for-sale.
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Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments were non-derivative financial
assets that were either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments were those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which might be sold in response to needs
for liquidity or changes in interest rate, exchange rate or
market prices. They were initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction costs. They
were subsequently held at fair value.

Financial assets were initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss were initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs were expensed in the income
statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss were subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments were carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” category were included in
the income statement in the period in which they arise.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets were recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity (fair value reserve), until
the financial asset was derecognised or impaired at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in equity was reclassified to income statement. However,
interest calculated using the effective interest method was
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments were recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment was
established.
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If an asset measured at fair value had a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that was most
representative of fair value in the circumstances should be
used to measure fair value. If there was no active market for
a financial asset, the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These included the use of recent arm'’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that
were substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis
and other valuation technigues commonly used by market
participants.

The Group might choose to reclassify financial assets that would
meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the available-
for-sale categories if the Group had the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at
the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications were made at fair value as of the reclassification
date. Fair value became the new cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date were subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories were determined at
the reclassification date.

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets was impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets was impaired and impairment losses
were incurred if, and only if, there was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (loss event) and
that loss event (or events) had an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about the following loss events:
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o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

o the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the Group would not
otherwise consider,

o initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

o observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

The Group first assessed whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that were
individually significant. For exposures which were not
individually significant, the Group would assess impairment
either individually or collectively. If the Group determined
that no objective evidence of impairment existed for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it included the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
them for impairment. Assets that were individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss was or
continues to be recognised were not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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If there was objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments
carried at amortised cost had been incurred, the amount
of the loss was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset was reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss was
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment had a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss was the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflected the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs
for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets were grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics which were relevant to the estimation
of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that were
collectively evaluated for impairment were estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience was adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical 10ss experience
was based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that did not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of
assets should reflect and be directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period
which were indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows were
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual oss experience.
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When a loan was uncollectable, it was written off against the
related allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the
Credit Committee. Such loans were written off after all the
necessary procedures had been completed and the amount
of the loss had been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decreased the amount of the
allowance for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreased and the decrease could be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss was reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal
was recognised in the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that an available-for-
sale investment or a group of available-for-sale investments
was impaired. For debt securities, the Group used the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost was also
evidence that the assets were impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in income
statement — was removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of the instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase could be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of such
change was reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that were either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms had
been renegotiated were treated as renegotiated loans.
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FRINE B B 75 3 5 2E BI 58 9 5 B BUE The adoption of HKFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting
R DEKTECHEEUARERE policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
ERENSFTEER LIRS - HEH financial assets and impairment of financial assets. HKFRS 9
BREERIFE IR INAREST LA also significantly amends other standards dealing with financial
el TEAEE - flanE B M %R instruments such as HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

SERME7R [SRTA - WE]-

T X FER BERNE B 1 s R Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption
FIOREREBAZE - of HKFRS 9 on the Group.
. BRI BN EETE 3.1. Classification and measurement of financial
instruments
R=ZZE—)/\F—HA—H E&gTA The total impact on the Group's retained profits due to
SRR ET 2 M AR EIRE & A classification and measurement of financial instruments as at
ZHmBmIE 1 January 2018 is as follows:
THIT
HK$'000
BORE e —BBD5 Opening retained profits — HKAS 39 5,889,254
AR 395%
HEHFREN AL ESH Transfer from fair value reserve arising
DEEUATERCGA from reclassification of investment
BRI AT EREES securities from available-for-sale to FVPL
BERE R F 3.1(a) 203,305
BIEA RER L Increase in impairment allowance on
loan portfolio 3.2(a), 4.2(a) )
AR E R R Increase in impairment allowance on
-ReLEHES — cash and short-term funds 3.2(b), 4.2(b) (1,041)
— IR AR AIRE  — investment securities at amortised cost 3.2(c), 4.2(c)(i) (1,245)
—AATEE L AL M — investment securities at FVOCI
ZHEREHEFEE 3.2(c), 4.2(c)(ii) (506)
RNE B RS £ Adjustment to retained profits from
28 955k i EHR B I 2 adoption of HKFRS 9 200,511

HARERF —FBEE|ME  Opening retained profits - HKFRS 9
ZERZE 95 6,089,765
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The following table analyses the impact of transition to HKFRS
9 on the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group as at 1 January 2018. There were no changes to the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

B E
9%
RZE—tF ERIERE
+=A=+-H ERIE9H
BE R-B-N%
HKAS 39 HERE -B-H
Audited as at 31 BB Impairment ~ HKFRS 9 as at
December 2017 Reclassification allowances 1 January 2018
iz THL THTL THL Tan
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE ASSETS
ReREdEs Cash and short-term funds 3.20) 25,278,190 - (1041 25,277,149
FEFIS RER Interest and remittance receivables 343978 - - 343,978
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 333727 - - 333,727
EFEAFE Loan portfolio, net 320) 7.829.441 - ?) 7,829,439
BHEE Investment securities:
—ATEEEEA — fair value through other
LT comprehensive income 31() - 5480912 - 5,480,912
~IATES(EIABR  —fairvalue through profit or loss 31 - 1,657,750 - 1,657,750
— REER AR — amortised cost 31(), 3.20) - 10,347,834 (1245 10,346,589
~TfRHE — avallable-for-sale 31(8), ©) 7,138 662 (7,138,662) - -
~HBEIHEH — held-to-maturity 31(0) 10,347,834 (10,347,834) - -
BFE - Re Prepayments, deposits and
REfEE other assets 67,154 - - 67,154
BiedE Fived assets 34,329 - - 34,329
BREHEAE Deferred tax assets 295 - - 295
BRBEE ReinsUrance assets 164,601 - - 164,601
BEAE Total assets 51,538,211 - (2288 51,535,923
& LIABILITIES
JERAIS. Interest payable 192,133 - - 192,133
JERIRE - EARL Accounts payable, accrued expenses
kERAE and other liabilities 5363263 - - 5,363,263
fTEsBIE Derivative financial instruments 119,064 - - 119,064
EHHEAR Current tax liabilities 116,288 = = 116,288
REAE Insurance liabilities 1,130,150 - - 1,130,150
BENERES Debt securities issued 34,840,706 - - 34,840,706
888 Total liabilities 11,761,604 - - 41,761,604
30 EQUITY
Eaia AREREA Capital and reserves attributable
Rk to the equity holders:
A Share capital 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
RERF Retained profits 31(),32 5,889,254 203,305 (2.794) 6,089,765
282 e Contingency reserve 1,679.837 - - 1,679,837
NFEGRE Fair value reserve 3.1, 32(0) 27516 (203,305) 506 4717
et Total equity 9,776,607 - (2,288) 9,774,319
BEREREE Total liabilities and equity 51538211 - (0288 51535923
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The following table shows the impact on fair value reserve
and retained profits of the Group due to the reclassification
of investment securities on the adoption of HKFRS9.

HATERE  BOTEREN
fhyg  PEUATHE
(REE) B AL HARZEF
Effect on fair 2R e
value reserve Effect on fair Effect on
(available-for- value reserve retained
sale) (Fvocl) profits*
ThT Tax TAx
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
BNRE-BALERER  Opening balance - HKAS 39 207,516 - 5,889,254
RERTHEESTHMANL  Reclassify investments from
AFER( A ER available-for-sale to FVPL 3.1(a) (203,305) - 203,305
BREFRAENESHNDES  Reclassify debt securities from
IATES AR M2EYE  available-for-sale to FVOCI 31() (21 421 -
yaug Total impact (207 516) 4211 203,305
MNGE-FAYRRKEERN  Opening balance - HKFRS 9
F9% - 4211 6,092,559

# RECREFE - F2HE T XHES.2

(a) HAHHEEHRIBRUAF
B AR

RZE-—NF—A—8 K&
ERRGIEBSES MEHE
BECEHESHNEFRERTE
1,657,750,000 7% 7T 2 1 A 4 i
ECREEET D ERUATF
EE{cat Az (KizE20(b)) °
BEESBUBERELELE?
5 RERETFENEAE
A RARAFEZ/ILTA
Hitb 2 @RS IEE  BAH
BEREYTERRIFAE
EFB  RREEHFREES
MBI AR AE R AR EE
% EUARVBEREED T
Al IR B AR FEZ (L AT
AEME2EREZE - BERFA
AU 25 203,305,000 78 TTE R
—E-N\F—A—B#RAHEH
ERENAFERFEERER
Bigf e HE_T—NF+=
A=+—HBLFE  #z%58
& A BrF E 18 513,500,000
BT BEEBZPERKE
10) °

before adjustment for impairment. See note 3.2 below.

(@) Reclassification from available-for-sale to FVPL

The Group’s investment securities in exchange-
traded funds and real estate investment trusts were
reclassified from available-for-sale to financial assets at
FVPL amounting to HK$ 1,657,750,000 as at 1 January
2018 (Note 20(b)). They do not meet the criteria to be
classified as amortised cost and FVOCI in accordance
with HKFRS 9, because their cash flows do not
represent solely payments of principal and interest
and these investment securities cannot fulfil the pure
equity definition from the issuer’s perspective in order
to make an irrevocable election on initial recognition
at FVOCI. Related accumulated fair value gain of
HK$203,305,000 were transferred from the fair value
reserve for available-for-sale investments to retained
profits on 1 January 2018. For the year ended 31
December 2018, net loss related to these investments
amounting to HK$13,500,000 were recognised in profit
or loss (Note 10).
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HEEZIMEN I EREH
B

EREDBAREESHNE
BIRERDBREHKA - K
SEEBAZEENERALH
RERE  MaxFREREE
BREAERREERSRNOF
BeR=F—AF—H8 -
%E A E A ST ARk E{E 2
RIEETREECRYTEEZR
P AT ER AR B i ) o I S T
RIEATHE ©

AHHEERERERDERU
DNPES T ARMEEYE

EERERABREEETH
BEAEUAFEZE (L AEME
mks AEAEETEB
WBREHNBReRERTEZ
EEEBRHEBERN - Z
ERENEGNRECREER
KEMFLE - Bt - AFEER
5,480,912,00078 7L By £ & JE
FTERREEHRAIHEES
MEESHOEEANFEE
bt AR EERENSFHE
E (3£ 20(a)) @ mMBFrA¥E
W#54,211,000 B TR =Z— N\
F-—A—HRAHDERER
FEREETSEANATEE
Bat AE M2 ARSI E R
DB

3.2. SMEAERE

REBEEMBRELENFINR A&
BEHNEXRHREREEEEATEN

B0 A -
ERHEE

RAekEHES

AR EECET ARMEEIR
BIEFKE + &

BRI AR FEFIZE

3.2.

Reclassification from held-to-maturity to amortised
cost

Debt investments that would have previously been
classified as held-to maturity are now classified as
amortised cost. The Group intends to hold the assets
to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows
consist solely of payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. There was no
difference between the previous carrying amount and
the revised carrying amount of these financial assets
at 1 January 2018 to be recognised in opening retained
profits.

Available-for-sale debt investments classified as
FVOCI

Debt investments were reclassified from available-
for-sale to FVOCI, as the Group’s business model is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling of these assets. The contractual cash flows of
these investments are solely principal and interest. As
a result, listed and unlisted debt investments with a
fair value of HK$5,480,912,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial assets at
FVOCI (Note 20(a)) and accumulated fair value gains
of HK$4,211,000 were reclassified from the fair value
reserve for available-for-sale investments to fair value
reserve for FVOCI investments on 1 January 2018.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets subject to

expected credit loss (ECL) model under HKFRS 9:

loan portfolio;
cash and short-term funds;
investments securities at FVOCI; and

investments securities at amortised cost.
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AEEERSREERRE LY R
EERIE IRIEFTEHIRETT X ©

WA EEBH RSB ER
FRAAR

@)

BEX4As

%‘:;—Ai—ﬂ—aa
FENEZHEE  AEER
R EREEER &ﬁ%m
TE 5 (B ] Se it 5T EL i AU BE R
HEBRERAKARIES -
RE B RS ERIE IR A
FoORERE—MBEAGE
LUEERE #Mmgﬁ@A&
BB EmETE o BRUNE R
ﬁzw@%mam_;—ﬂi—
A—BAMRBHEN TR I
B A MI3E 4.2(a) Bt B RUE 77
5 o MisEd 2@ =T — \F—
A—BHREREERES HR
BORLE BB IEEIR -

REREHES

RekBHESKRE/ER
% FREREREE R 12
BEAREREEER - RER
11,041,000 TER=ZF—/)\
E*H — B #) fr B A

7 E R A EE4.2(D) Pt &Y
/J?Méﬁ/i

EREFRE

R SR AR A A A FEE (LT
AR E2ERENEREHE
BEWEARRR - E iR E
EHEEA12EANESRER
B 18 o LB A R AR F{E
Bt AE M2 WS ER
BB B E 9 Bl B 1,245,000 75
JC % 506,000/ 7t * ER = F
—N\F—A—BHREB R+
R - WE AN EE4.2(c) ATt
HRE T A °

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology in compliance with HKFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets.

The impact of the change in impairment methodology on the
Group's equity is disclosed below.

(@)

Loan portfolio

For loan portfolio already in place at 1 January 2018,
the Group has determined that reliably assessing the
probability of default at the initial recognition of each
loan or receivable would result in undue cost and effort.
As permitted by HKFRS 9, the impairment allowance
is determined in general based on loan portfolio with
similar credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
Charge of loan impairment allowances of HK$2,000
was recognised in retained profits as at 1 January 2018
for which the impairment methodology described in
Note 4.2(a) has been applied. Note 4.2(a) reconciles the
impairment allowance as at 1 January 2018 to that at
the end of the reporting period.

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds are considered to be low
risk, and thus the impairment allowance is determined
as 12-month ECLs. Charge of impairment allowances of
HK$1,041,000 was recognised in retained profits as at
1 January 2018 for which the impairment methodology
described in Note 4.2(b) has been applied.

Investments in debt securities

Investments in debt securities at amortised cost and
those at FVOCI are considered to be low risk, and
thus the impairment allowance is determined as
12-month ECLs. Charge of impairment allowances
of HK$1,245,000 and HK$506,000 for investments
at amortised cost and for investments at FVOCI
respectively were recognised in retained profits as at
1 January 2018 for which the impairment methodology
described in Note 4.2(c) has been applied.
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4. MBEIGER

4.1.

RASm I AR

AEENEIZEBR()VBERIBIE
PG ()VEBETESREEEE
BT ¢ (1) AR HEBRTAEIA
BREEMRFEEFORIBEN - 12
HIRIBIRR + (Iv) A 7R AT A8 P s
MEBRPERIFEETABTER » 12
HHBER  (VARAIRBERRSE
FrAGENZ RS - RERBRE
(Vi RAREREDEEEIEE
AR EN —FRBER - RHER
RE : (vil) R~ AP RFEIATE
NEVEFREYELE - R (Vi) RKE BB
REKGFEER - REEME - X
SEXBEIEEACHRIABER
 BER BEERITETA-

AEENEFEHSBYBERR &
FERBE RO - Hh - AERERE
—ERENERXERES - AEE
REFFBRABRETREETER

B -

CEEAREEZESINEEEER
VEECRBEEANRRER(EHE
BT R IE TS R ) o & AR R R H IR
BNBEHAAARAZEEZER (R
RiEEZRE BEERABEEZER
g REPREZEGREERRER
ZE®)EERERRE - XREE
RBREREZEERE -

4,

Financial risk management

4.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (ii) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage loans
originated by such Als and secured on residential properties
in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee cover to
Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to SMEs and
non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide insurance
cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated
by such Als to elderly people; (vi) to provide insurance cover
to Als in respect of lump-sum loans to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes for land premium settlement;
(vii) to operate a centralised microfinance platform to support
microfinance loans; and (viii) to offer life annuity products
in or from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group's activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees of
the Company, including the Credit Committee, Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee
(TAC) and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to
the Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition and Microfinance Scheme.
The ALCO oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis
of pricing economics and associated risks for business
transactions, whilst taking into consideration the latest
market conditions and business strategies approved by
the Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annulity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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4.2. Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds and
placements with the Exchange Fund. The credit risk on liquid
funds and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital
and premium receipts of the HKMCA are placed with the
Exchange Fund managed by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (HKMA). The credit risk on the placements with
the Exchange Fund is very limited as it is exposure to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(Government).

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers with established criteria, (ii) adopt prudent asset
purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk
assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group are
spread over a large number of customers and counterparties.
The underlying collaterals on the Group’s mortgage
exposures are located in Hong Kong.
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The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which
are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
26). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis.
For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is generally
sought.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 4.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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ECL measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and credit impaired on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

o External credit rating (as far as available);

o Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o Actual or expected significant changes in the financial
conditions of the borrower;

o Significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower;

o Significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLs is applied on loan
portfolio, cash and short-term funds and debt instruments
accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI. Financial assets
migrate through the following three stages based on the
change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECLs associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial
assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised and interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of
impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLs is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months. At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, impairment
allowance is required from all possible default events over
the expected life of the financial assets. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.
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iz S IRTE AR AT (E - FIEAEISA Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
REEEALBITVEBFGE 22/ expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
BEMSTAEH EMELERFE in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
AR BEERTEEIESEEZ BEX after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
15T LAGESH - EFHERONBRT completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Wilﬂ%ﬁgxﬁéﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁiﬁéﬂu’*:‘t Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
H&z@ 2 2R pE U IE o fin i 1=l B 8 K to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover

AlfERE EPEE% o the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are

recognised in profit or 10ss.

(@ ExHEe (@) Loan portfolio
AEBBERIZEEERR S The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect
=K AR (] i E & FE A their credit risk and how the loan l0ss provision is
W EREIBRE - determined for each of those categories.
AEEBREEBEERER A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
B R an T Group's ECL model on loans is as follows:
BRANCESERENER
Rl HRIWES Basis for recognition of ECL
Category Definition of category provision
—[&ER ERABNERRE - WERHENETED 1218 A B EA(E BB 18 (A& E R TE
WEME ° FHIOR12ME A - RITERESIERETE
HIGFHAET 2 o )
Stage 1 Borrowers have a low risk of default and a 12-month ECLS (Where the expected
strong capacity to meet contractual cash lifetime of an asset is less than
flows. 12 months, expected losses are

measured at its expected lifetime.)

2 PEER EROEERBRAREN : BFER/SAXE BHFREEEE - REEEERE
B EEANK  AIREAEERKREEL
e
Stage 2 Loans for which there is a significant increase Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired
in credit risk; as significant increase in credit
risk is presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are more than 30 days past due.
FE=PERER MER/HAREFEHOX o BHFREEEE - EERE
Stage 3 Interest and/or principal repayments are 90 Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired
days past due.
85 &4 ER TR ER ] W B8 BRI B R /S AR R 18K o HIHEE
Write-off There is no reasonable expectation of recovery Asset is written off
on the delinquent interest and/or principal
repayments.
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However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider
a loan to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any enhancements held by
the Group.

Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for
its credit risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on
a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of loan portfolio, and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loan portfolio for which impairment
allowance is recognised.

R=B-NF+=A=1+—-H
As at 31 December 2018

F—RER FRE £ o)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TET TET TET TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IREZE Gross carrying amount 6,435,587 1,615 5528 6,442,730
B Impairment allowance (47) (151) (468) (666)
IRE(E Carrying amount 6,435,540 1,464 5,060 6,442,064
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RZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—H The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
05 AR & TR (B B 1 HL B R December 2018 reconciles to the opening impairment
EREZEHRAT allowance as follows:

£-K& ERE FZRE |
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=E—+E+-F=1+—8 Impairmentallowance as

BERAEENEIR at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

HRERE 3 = 383 386
BEEBIHREESZE0%  Amounts restated through opening

BRBMRBEH S8 retained profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1)

$B(M3E3.1) 2 - - 2

W=Z—/\F—A—HiRE  Restated impairment allowance
EROHREEISE%M  asat?January 2018 under HKFRS 9

BB FE%E ) = 383 388
BREHHMELN Net measurement of impairment arising
BT EFE from transfer of stage - 485 516 1,001
REERREHMELNHEY  Movement due to changes in credit risk 4 - - 42
WERAMIHER Recoveries of loans not written-off - @) (135) (143)
42 477 381 900
EYREEZRE Transfer to stage 3 - (326) 3% -
RE Write-0ffs - - (622) (622)
R=Z2-N5+=A=1-HA Impairment allowance as
MR ERE (MEE19) at 31 December 2018 (Note 19) 47 151 468 666
R ERE Charge of loan impairment allowance 4 477 381 900
WE kAR FHER Recoveries and release of loans
previously written-off - - (832) (882)
HERE (DR 4% Total charge/(write-back) of impairment
(K 14) allowance (Note 14) 42 477 (501) 18
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by REREHES

RZF-N\F+ZA=+—H
MR & MERE S RERER
HADRE R IR AT -

RZZE—+F+-RA=+—BRE
BEGHERIZE 39 RARIER
REBEEBMBHWEENE IFEBH

(b)  Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-term
funds as at 31 December 2018 reconciles to the
opening impairment allowance as follows:

R=ZB-N\%F
+=A=+-8H
As at

31 December
2018

TET
HK$'000

Impairment allowance as at
31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 =
Amounts restated through opening retained

MRB&HETIH R (FIEE3.1) profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1) 1,041
RZZE—N\F—F—HBREEEYH Restated impairment allowance as

HwEERFE OFL TR EREE at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1,041
HARERERRREREEE) Change in the impairment allowance

(Mf7E14) recognised in profit or loss during

the period (Note 14) (95)

R=B-N\F+=-A=+—HK Impairment allowance as at

WA (ML 16) 31 December 2018 (Note 16) 946

REBEHENRERS - A&
BER RN EYRITHED
FE RIE SRR RAIIRTT

REEBEEY (AR EER -
ZAEEENFER S F I
MERFEREENEEREER
B WIRBAEERS
KESBEITRE - AREER
ERFENTRREEES -

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only place deposits with note-issuing banks
or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
macroeconomic data to determine the ECLS for
impairment allowance.
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All of these financial assets are considered to be low
risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at investment
grade by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was limited to
12-month ECLS.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
minimum acceptable short-term credit ratings are A-2
(Standard and Poor’s), P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).

Investment securities

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and
reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating classification as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency's ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

URFERETA RBHRA

Htt2EKEN SlRMRSRE

HERE Investment
Investment securities at wm
securities at FVOCI amortised cost Total
R=B-NE+=A=t-H TR TEx TER
As at 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/AGa AAA/Aaa 30,105 711,904 742,009
AA—Z AA+/AG3 E Aal AA- t0 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,069,211 2,826,744 5,895,955
A—ZA+/A3EAT A-t0 A+/A3 10 A1 1,992,348 8,009,627 10,001,975
b Total 5,091,664 11,548,275 16,639,939

EBRBEFERAT T N\F58 211



FE B ERERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

At EES RFAZEES
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity k]
securities securities Total
RZE—tF+=A=+—-H TAT TAT AT
As at 31 December 2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aga AAA/Aaa 56,861 858,547 915,408
AA—ZE AA+/Aa3 £ Aal AA- t0 AA+/A33 to Aa1 3,468,224 3,147,190 6,615,414
A—ZA+H/AIEAT A- 10 A+/A3 10 A1 1,955,827 6,342,097 8,297,924
B Total 5,480,912 10,347,834 15,828,746
(i) IRESEKAIIR (KRR () Investment securities at amortised cost
BHEZIH) NEFKRE (previously held-to-maturity)
2 S X AR 51 IR 1Y 3 Investment securities at amortised cost
KEBEEMEIELET include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
BHESF - R_ZT—N impairment allowance on investment securities
F+-_A=+—8Bmi% at amortised cost as at 31 December 2018
5 P AN 51 IR B 7 5 1R reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
& Rk (8 B {5 B8 R 4R (B as follows:
BEERNT

R=F—-N\fF
+t=A=t-AH
As at

31 December
2018

TERT
HK$'000

RZZE—tF+ZA=+—HRE  Impairment allowance as at
BASFERISE 39 R AR E R 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 -
BEESHHEREENFEISEBE  Amounts restated through opening retained

TURB R FE5H£5E (H1FE3.1) profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1) 1,245
RZZE—N\F—A—HBEBBHH Restated impairment allowance as
LEREBEORMAESRERME a1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1,245
HAMNERERRREREE Change in the impairment allowance
(BFzE14) recognised in profit or loss during
the period (Note 14) 197
REZB-N\F+ZA=+—HH Impairment allowance as at
B R (FEE20(c)) 31 December 2018 (Note 20(c)) 1,442
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(i)

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at amortised cost are rated at investment grade
by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was
limited to 12-month ECLS.

Investment securities at FVOCI (previously
available-for-sale)

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance for investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2018 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

t=A=+-H
As at

31 December
2018

FERT
HK$'000

NZB—+F+-A=+—H8RE
EREELFE 30 RERE
REEAN RS ERE IR B R
R B HESR S5 (FHEE3.1)

R-ZE—N\F—B—BREEBHE
SRS 9 SRR B IR E R

HIARME SRR RER S EE)
(BFzE14)

Impairment allowance as at

31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 =
Amounts restated through opening retained

profits under HKFRS 9 (Note 3.1) 506

Restated impairment allowance as

at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 506
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss during

the period (Note 14) 14

R-ZF-\F+-A=1-H
REM2E KRR R ERE

Impairment allowance recognised
in OCI as at 31 December 2018 520
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised during the period was limited to
12-month ECLs.

Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
into account of collateral held or other credit
enhancements are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their gross carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are as
follows:

R-ZEB—NFE RZT—tF
+=A=+—RH +-HA=1+—H
As at As at

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

F#ET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000

R IR 4258 Total risk-in-force
— IR TS — mortgage insurance business 23,736,830 21,100,756
—H A PR AR R 275 — other guarantee and insurance
business 9,644,703 6,876,730
33,381,533 27,977,486
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ENREENEEZRESTH (e) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as
T @ follows:

R=B-NE R-F—+F
t=A=t-B +=A=t—H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

T# T FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R EATNARRE Neither past due nor impaired 6,307,759 7,652,233

BHERRE Past due but not impaired 134,503 177,213

BRE Impaired 468 381

BEXEA 5 Gross loan portfolio 6,442,730 7,829,827
EROREREE Allowance for loan impairment (666) (386)

6,442,064 7,829,441
2 3 AR R 8 HA IR R R E /Y The credit quality of loans that were neither past due
EREENEERE  7I2ZE nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
RNEBERMA N TR R G be assessed by reference to the internal rating system

1Ta1HE © adopted by the Group.

R=FB-NF RIFT—tF
t=A=t-B +=A=t—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
TF#E T FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Al Grades:
123 1t03 6,296,101 7,648,227
4 4 - =
5 5 11,658 4,006

6,307,759 7,652,233
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either insignificant
credit risk or no recent past due history; and with
different levels of credit enhancements in addition to
the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history and
with different levels of credit enhancement in addition
to the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history and
with collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

R-ZE—tF
+=A=+—8 +=A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
F#ET FHT
HK$000 HK$'000
EEp Past due:

=RAZAT Three months or less 133,090 176,723

NEAZKAT Six months or less but
BiEEA=1EA over three months 1,209 77
~EA M E Over six months 204 413
FEkE Total 134,503 177,213
HhE#mHnAEE Of which fair value of collateral 2,644,395 2,409,667
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4.3. HiBEE
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(@ Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group before taking
into account the cash flows from collateral held
amounted to HK$468,000 (2017: HK$381,000).

The fair value of related collateral held for individually
impaired loans of the Group was nil (2017: nil).

(h)  Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. Repossessed properties are
sold as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to
reduce the outstanding indebtedness and are classified
in the statement of financial position within “Other
assets”. If excess funds arise after repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness, they are distributed to the
beneficiaries of the assets under the applicable laws.

4.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group's exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued by the use
of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.
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The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results of
the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income under
different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative
impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel
downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31 December
2018 would decrease the future net interest income for the
next twelve months by around HK$1 million (2017: HK$2
million increase) and increase by around HK$1 million (2017:
HK$2 million decrease) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been lower by around HK$1 million
(2017: HK$0.2 million higher) and the fair value reserve would
have been higher by around HK$4 million (2017: HK$3 million)
as at 31 December 2018. If interest rates had experienced
a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year
would have been higher by HK$1 million (2017: HK$0.3 million
lower) and the fair value reserve would have been lower by
around HK$4 million (2017: HK$3 million).

As at 31 December 2018, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$20 million higher (2017:
HK$17 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$20
million lower (2017: HK$17 million).
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As at 31 December 2018, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$1
million higher (2017: HK$2 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$1 million lower (2017: HK$2
million).

As at 31 December 2018, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, profit for
the year would have been around HK$5 million lower.
Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had increased by 1%, profit for the
year would have been around HK$5 million higher.

As at 31 December 2017, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, the fair
value reserve would have been around HK$17 million lower.
Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had increased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$17 million higher.

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may
be undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding
side, the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,

D e

categorised by currency.

BT
HKD
TER
HK$'000

xn
UsD
TR
HK$'000

R
Other foreign

currencies
TAL
HK$'000

ax
Total
TAn
HK$'000

R=Z-NE+ZA=1+-8 Asat31December 2018
BE Assets
BeRkEHES Cash and short-term funds 28,807,046 510,753 73,056 29,390,855
e RIS RER Interest and remittance receivables 281,881 11,117 44,921 437,919
fTEsgTA Derivative financial instruments 140,193 4,348 16,506 161,047
ESASTE Loan portfolio, net 6,442,064 - - 6,442,064
BHRE Investment securites:
—AATEELAA —PRvoCl
Eth2ENE 1,253,359 3,838,305 - 5,091,664
— WATEE AR —FWPL 534,843 8,769 - 543,612
— SRR A 1R — amortised cost 2,808,433 8,738,400 - 11,546,833
HNEESTEH Placements with the Exchange Fund 7,734,934 - - 7,734,934
BNFE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
HtEE other assets 689,045 140,351 95 829,491
ETEE Fixed assets 53,766 - - 53,766
BREHEAE Deferred tax assets 77,866 - - 77,866
BRBEE Reinsurance assets 171,518 - - 171,518
EEES Total assets 48,994,948 13,352,043 134,578 62,481,569
& Liabilities
S Interest payable 217,962 10,744 28,762 257,468
EMIRE - ERRZR Accounts payable, accrued
EtaE expenses and other liabilities 4,918,523 143,156 - 5,061,679
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 78,739 2,791 182,856 264,386
EHREEE Current tax liabilities 104,077 - - 104,077
REBAE Insurance liabilities 4,607,373 - - 4,607,373
BREIEEES Debt securities issued 28,199,186 5,996,683* 3,097,008** 37,292,871
BEES Total liabilities 38,125,860 6,153,374 3,308,626 47,587,860
FEFE Net position 10,869,088 7,198,669 (3,174,048) 14,893,709
BEBERINFLERR 0ff-balance sheet net notional
position ! (11,770,471) 8,532,367 2,982,048 (256,056)

* [EEEERINFERERTA #

N A k "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EINETEeRTA(E2A

) Lo difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
L‘iﬁﬁ¢%ﬁ@ﬁ%&§b o)) derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
szz WEESHEEQAFEDN reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
Ef o fair values.

i 2HERRABIT © & Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

5 BERIE1SEBTRRITER *
BHRISEBTHARBES
B WEREE I ABITT -

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$1.5 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.
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Hfrght
BT e Other foreign g
HKD usb currencies Total
TAL AL T AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=F—+F+-F=+-H Asat31December 2017
EE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 23,703,585 1,371,906 202,699 25,278,190
EUFIERER Interest and remittance receivables 215,386 85,954 12,638 343978
(TEEHMIE Derivative financial instruments 182,820 4617 146,290 333,727
et Loan portfolio, net 7,829,441 - - 7,829,441
BHRE: Investment securities:
—AfHE — avalable-for-sale 2,859,419 4279243 - 7,138,662
—HAEIE — held-to-maturity 2487871 7775932 84,031 10,347,334
BNZUE REREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 37,000 30,054 100 67,154
ETdE Fixed assets 34,329 - - 34,329
EREHEEE Deferred tax assets 295 - - 295
BREEE Reinsurance assets 164,601 - - 164,601
RERS Total assets 37,514,747 13,547,706 475,758 51,538,211
B Liabilities
T8 Interest payable 162,124 3592 %417 192,133
EMEE - BRFAZR Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Efaf and other liabilities 5,098,39 264,367 - 5,363,263
ITEERMIE Derivative financial instruments 68,163 - 50,901 119,064
EHEER Current tax liabilities 116,288 - - 116,288
RE&E Insurance liabilities 1,130,150 - - 1,130,150
BRTERES Debt securities issued 27,424,606 2,048 751% 5,367,349 34,810,706
BEAE Total liabilities 34,000,227 2.316,710 5,444,667 41,761,604
REFE Net position 3,514,520 1123099 (4,968,909) 9.776,607
BEBERINGAEHET Off-balance sheet net notional position * (7,302,494) 2,046,666 5,281,689 25,861

[BERERINFEERER

FINBITESRTA(ZER
PORE AR S BN B R E) O,
) B &% S REE R FER
ZH e

* 2EEN BT

> BEEE6EE TR ESEER
EH 17 RBTTARTELE
FRI0EBTHARKELE
o WEBEHAET

* %

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

HK$2.6 billion, Australian dollars of HK$1.7 billion and renminbi
of HK$1 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may be
undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group's exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-EANE  ZEANME —-ElE
2=fiA E-F ZRE
—fBAR Over Over Over RENE FitE

Upto 1monthto 3 months 1year to Over  Non-interest g
1month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
Tén Tén Thn Tén Thn TEn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-NE+ZA=t-H Asat31December 2018

(] Assets
ReRERES Cash and short-term funds 9,187,118 18714302 1,279,899 - - 209536 29,390,855
JelH S RER Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 437,919 437,919
fTESHIR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 161,047 161,047
EREREFE Loan portfolio, net 6,400,321 22,248 7,012 10,934 1,549 - 6,440,064
EHRE - Investment securiies:

—IATER(LEA — RVl

Eh2EkE 851,591 3,239,436 497,458 503,179 - - 5,091,664

—NATERGABR  —FWRL - - - - - 543612 543,612

— RRSHATR —amortised cost - 1309923 1335738 4317726 4,583,446 - 11,546,833
NEESTR Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 7734934 7,734,934
B - BEREM Prepayments, deposits

EE and other assets 137,483 - - - - 692,008 829,491
EedE Fixed assets - - - - - 53,766 53,766
BithEEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 77,866 77,866
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 171,518 171518
BEAE Total assets 16,576,513 23285909 3120107 4,831,839 4584995 10,082,206 62,481,569
af Liabilities
JERFIE. Interest payable - - - - - 257,468 257,468
JERIRE - EREX Accounts payable, accrued

REfEE expenses and other liabiities 4,902,866 - - - - 158,813 5,061,679
fESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 264,386 264,386
EHfRaE Current tax liabities - - - - - 007 104,077
gk Insurance liabiiies - - - - - 4607373 4,607,373
BEGBESR Debt securities issued 5631318 11495125 8,082,087 846883 3615511 - 37292877
RfELEE Total liabilities 10,534,184 11495125 8,082,087 8468836 3615511 5392117 47,587,860
HEgREROEE" Total interest sensiivity gap* 6,042,329 11,790,784 (4,961,980)  (3,636,997) 969,484
FIEfTETA Interest rate derivatives

(BeFENLELE) (notional amounts of net position) (567,144) (6,033,612 3810990 1293541 1,240,169

* Rt ASTE SR ITAHB T * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
BEREFEECENTE - the debt securities issued.
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AB —Ep b
E-F Egika
—ERR Qver Over REGE it

Upto  Tmonthto 3months 1yearto Over  Non-interest
1 month 3months t0 1year 5years 5years Dearing Total
Thr T Thr iy ThT ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RIE—+ET-A=+-H Asat31December 2017

BE Assets
ReRERES Cash and short-term funds 10914798 10289000 3,968,000 - - 106392 25278190
JElH S REF Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 313978 313,978
fTEEHIR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 33727 333727
ERERFE Loan portfolio, net 1,177,951 26,167 10,666 14,835 216 - 7829441
EHRA - Investment securiies:

— e — avallable-for-sale 1137786 304488 715015 583,29 - 16770 7138662

—#EEH — helc-to-maturty 1755 1008538 4018 480050 3955975 - 0T
B - EEREM Prepayments, deposits and

HE ofher assets 29315 - - - - 37839 67,154
HEAE Fixed assets - - - - - 3,309 3,329
BiLHEEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 29 25
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 164,601 164,601
EEGE Total assets 19,976,707 14,368 539 5,157,699 5,400,114 3,956,191 2618911 51,538,211
8f Liabilties
JERFIE Interest payable - - - - - 192133 192133
JERHIRE - FERTR Accounts payable, accrued

L expenses and other liabiliies 5,208,780 - - - - 154483 5363263
fESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 119,064 119,064
BHnEaRE Current tax iabilties - - - - - 116,288 116,288
RRaE Insurance liabilties - - - - - 0150 1130150
BEfERES Debt securitis issued 9410453 9501755 4750551 7564434 3613513 - 34840706
RfELEE Total liabilities 14,619,233 9,501,755 4,750,551 7,564,434 3613513 1712118 41,761,604
F S R B Total interest sensitivity gap* 5,357,474 4,366,834 407,148 (2,164,320) 342,678
FIEFTETA Interest rate derivatives

(BRFENAZSR) (notional amounts of net position) (345007 (2155968) 30,132 79096 1375718

* RETATESRMITAHB T o before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
ERBHFEELNTE - the debt securities issued.

224  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



A IRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

b4 FENEEEE

RBETEREAREREEZRR
HRARBERCEHBERENETRHEE
SHER - AREESRENESRA
Komi - Wikpr A B HARAR | 7 IR A
EZEMESRARRH - ARERETYZ
BB KR FEEBER LG
FEEMAEES - BERBEEZR
SEERERBDESHRETR °

RIFRBREREDH

TRINRAKE N 2 RARE
RBENFHARMIEITETR
TREE NEFEEELEEH
TETASRHBERABEE
EEENTESRTEMEN
HEemneg RNEENESEA
BREORFTENATRE
BREREZFENAEANIN
BET E R RRA B FIR ©
AEBNITETARERRE
EELEENMN RN - REHE
EEFENBEEE RN
EHEHK -

4.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources of
liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

(@ Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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(i EPTETERESRH ()  Non-derivative cash outflows

-BANE  ZEAME —EHE
2=f8R B-f ZIE
—-fBAR Over Over Over RENE

Upto1 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over ot
month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
T TR TR TR TR TiEn

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=Z-N\E+=B=t-H Asat31December 2018
af Liabilities
BETERES Debt securities issued (2,179,266)  (6,272,341) (11,778,059) (14,558,938)  (4,517,697) (39,306,301)

—EE
ERE
—fAAR Over Over
Upto  Tmonthto 3months 1year to
1 month 3months to 1year 5years Total
TAT T AL TAT T AL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-B—+E+-F=1+-H8 Asat31December 2017
=1 Liabilities
BRERES Debt securiies issued 0926520 (155630 (12005961 (1355008 (453,06  (37,145,240)
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(i PTETERESHEA/CR (i)  Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
)

-BANE  =MBRSE —EhE
2=fi8 B-f Eit:3
—fEAR Over Over Over AENE

Upto1 1monthto 3 months 1year to Over ok
month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5years Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=8-NE+ZB=1-8 Asat31December 2018
ETHIRELER Derivative financial

fEeBIA: instrument settled:
—FEEE — on net hasis (6,129) 17,655 29 14,587 (29,246) (3,104)
— Rk — 0N gross basis
ofuitc:2 Total outflow (785,440)  (1,808,855) (6,528,845  (1,512,233)  (1,503,110) (12,138,483)
MALE Total inflow 782,570 1,801,737 6,574,167 1,571,487 1,328,637 12,058,598

(8,999 10,537 45,351 73,841 (203,719) (82,989)

=fANE —EpE
LS
—f@ARA Over Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3months 1yearto QOver ag

1 month 3months 10 1year 5 years 5years Total
TAL AL TAL T AL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RE—+E+-A=+—H Asat31December 2017

ETSIREEEN Derivative financial
TTERRIA instrument settlec:
—FEEE — onnetbasis 985 (11,490) 31,536 (13181) (30,558) (22,708)
—BEAE — on gross hasis
it Total outfiow (172843 (130459 (3649078 (993568 (154018 (7,660,261)
MAEE Total inflow 172,508 1323759 3,790,465 1,102,945 1,532,460 7922131

650 7,678 172927 96,19 (38,283) 239,168
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(b) EIHBDH (b) Maturity analysis
TRBEBEEHRARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
BEIGHRE 2 EEEER relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
B EREAAER - period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

-BANLE Z@ANLE —-E)E
=fEA it 3
=2 —-EAR Over Over  EEHE

Repayable Upto 1monthto3 3monthsto  1yearto Over ERE ]
on demand 1 month months 1year 5years 5years  Undated Total
Tn Tn Tn Tin Tin Tén Tn TEn
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=8-NE1+ZA=1-B As at 31 December 2018

4E Assets
REREHES (8%) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 196590 9,200,211 18,715,000 1,280,000 - - - 29,391,801
EFEA Loan portfolio 2,195 44,596 123,539 460,888 2,109,440 3,694,490 7582 6,442,730
FHRE Investment securities
—HNATERGIALZEKE  —FVOC - 2,780 191143 1,627,876 3,244,865 - - 5,091,664
—NAFERHARR —FVPL = = - - - - 543,612 543,612
— R HRASIR (2%) —amortised cost (gr0ss) = = 300000 1335810 5328313 4,584,152 - 11,548,275
MNEREER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 773493 - 1734934
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 171518 171518
198,785 9,272,587 19,329,682 4704574 10,682,618 16013576 722,712 60,924,534
8 Liabilities
RBREE Insurance liabilities - 20,357 4038 176995 824770 2222001 1322844 4,607,373
BENREES Debt securiies issued - 259218 6,110,063 11307930 13,667,187 3615511 - 37,9287

- 2612543 6150449 11484925 14491957 5837532 1,322,844 41,900,250

—EhE
) EF EhE
HEEE  —EAR Over  AFEHE

Repayable Upto 1monthto3  3monthsto 1year to QOver &R

on demand 1 month months 1year 5years 5years Total
TEL THL T ; TAL AL

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZF—tE+-A=+-H  Asat31December 2017

3 Assets
BeRRHES Cash and short-term funds 93,79 10927391 10,289,000 3,968,000 - - - 5278190
B34 Loan portfolio 3426 61,580 132,817 543,114 2,466,304 4621873 713 7,829,827
FHRE Investment securities
—AHE — available-for-sale - 551,833 291,063 819,816 3818200 - 1657750 7,138,662
—HEZEH — held-to-maturity = 117,283 = 464018 5,810,588 3,955,975 - 10,347,834
BRREE RelnsLrance assets - - - - - - 164,601 164,601
97,025 11,658,057 10,712,880 5794948 12,095,092 8,577,848 1823064 50,759,114
af Liabilities
RBEE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1130150 1,130,150
BEIERES Debt securities issued = 4,871,829 2060057 11,647,747 12,647,560 3613513 - 34,840,706

- 48829 2000057 11647747 12647560 3613513 1,130,150 35,970,856
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Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

4.5. Insurance risk

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group provides
the mortgage insurance cover to the Als for first credit losses
of up to 40% of the property value of a residential mortgage
loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at
origination, or other thresholds as specified from time to
time. The Group also provides financial guarantee cover to
Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMES
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong, insurance cover to
Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by such
Als and secured on residential properties and, if applicable,
other assets, and in respect of lump-sum loans advanced
by such Als to owners of properties of subsidised housing
schemes primarily for land premium settlement and secured
on these properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means longer
payout period and larger loan balance will be over time. This
will affect the frequency and severity of claims as there is a
risk of the property value insufficient to cover the outstanding
loan balance in the future.
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The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-
share reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers
in an effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage
insurance business. The Group conducts comprehensive
assessment including the financial strength and credit ratings
of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the approved
selection framework. The approved mortgage reinsurers
are subject to periodic reviews. For financial guarantee
cover provided to Als via its general insurance subsidiary,
the Group relies on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment
on the borrowers to mitigate default risk and any 10ss in
the loan facility will be shared proportionately between the
Group and the lender on a pari passu basis to minimise moral
hazards. The mortality assumptions of reverse mortgages are
also reviewed on a regular basis, to assess the risk of larger
deviation between the actual and expected operating results.

Through its life insurance subsidiary, the Group offers annuity
product to personal customers. Insurance risk arises from
an inaccurate assessment of the risks entailed in writing and
pricing an insurance policy. The major insurance risk is the
longevity risk which arises from the possibility that actual
life expectancy of annuitants being longer than expected.
Insurance risk is managed by adopting a prudent set of
assumptions and conducting regular experience studies.
Asset-liability mismatch risk inherent to the annuity product
is due to asset volatility, uncertain annuity liabilities, cash
flow mismatch and currency mismatch between assets and
liabilities. To mitigate such risk, the Group actively monitor
the performance and steadfastly maintains control over asset
allocation.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.
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The general insurance subsidiary and life insurance
subsidiary are subject to the supervision of the Insurance
Authority and are required to observe the relevant
compliance requirements stipulated by the Insurance
Authority.

As at 31 December 2018, if the combined ratio of general
insurance business had increased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2017: HK$3 million) lower. If
the combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2017: HK$3 million) higher.

The following table shows the sensitivity of insurance
liabilities on the life insurance business to potential changes
in mortality and valuation interest rate as at 31 December
2018 (2017: nil).

R EE REEE
SHEEH BoLE#E
Amount Percentage
change from change from

insurance insurance
liabilities liabilities
F#ET %
HK$’'000 %
/GRS B/ CRs)
R=TB-NFE+=A=+—H Increase/ Increase/
As at 31 December 2018 (decrease) (decrease)
A = Mortality
+ 10% +10% (45,692) (1.4)
- 10% - 10% 51,432 1.6
fH{ER = Valuation interest rate
+0.5% +0.5% (132,321) (4.0)
- 0.5% - 0.5% 143,042 4.4
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4L6. TMEEREGREMATE 4.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ ADFEMLE (@) Fair value estimation
TRINTRAFEREGEER The following table shows financial instruments
HAEE RN SR THE - AF recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
BERERFIESRDT : different levels of fair value hierarchy have been

defined as follows:

s REABMELEPEHRE

Quoted prices in active markets for identical

EXaEzs®mE(E— assets or liabilities (Level 1);
) :

. RE—EMBREZRE o Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
SN BLEEK A EEE 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
B (A0EH) s s (T either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
BIEHE) P B R 2 2R from prices) (Level 2); and
(B=E) &k

o FHAEEXABBEILIEE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
A BB 2 5 8% (1 on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
ABRz2HE) (E= (Level 3).
E) -

R=B-\F+=A=1-H RZF—tE+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017
5B #°E CE 2% i #E

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2
TEn Thn TEn Thn TAL TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EE Assets
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments - 161,047 - 161,047 - 333727 333,727
F5ikE Investment securities
—ATEREA —Fvol
-y ueilesy 5,091,664 - - 5,091,664 - - -
—ATERGABE  —FPL 543,612 - - 543,612 - - -
IHLERS Available-for-sale securities
— EBES — Debt securities - - - - 5480912 - 5480912
— B2 — Other securities - - - - 1,657,750 - 1657750
MNEESTFH Placements with the Exchange
Fund - - 7734934 7,734,934 - - -
5,635,276 161,047 7,734,934 13,531,257 7,138,662 333,727 7,472,389
8F Liabilities
ITEEBTA Derivative financial instruments - 264,386 - 264,386 - 119,064 119,064

IMIBREAEETEAUAT  Debt securities issued designated
st A\BHEMEZT  asatfair value through profit
ERES or loss upon initial recognition - 143981 - 143981 - 141,946 141946

= 408,367 = 408,367 = 261,010 261,010
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technique not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2017.

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation technigues. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.
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Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.

(i)~ Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3. The placements with the
Exchange Fund are included in Level 3 with its fair
value determined by reference to the estimated
rates of investment return for future years.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as
follows:

2017

TAT
HK$'000

Rn—H—8 As at 1 January = =
HNEEL SR Placements with the Exchange Fund 7,550,000 -
RIBE P RERH Income from placements with
HNEESTF RS the Exchange Fund recognised
in profit or loss 184,934 -
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 7,734,934 -

WHUAFEFENERHEE
MafE

RZFE—NF+=ZA=+—
AR=F—tF+t=ZA=+—
H - AEBEWARRI BT
BRATERHZ/NESHITARN
IRAEHEAFEREEAT
[ o BREIREEEQFERE
MEeRITAINN TRAEIF N
AFEFENESHRIAEZIR
HE A TFERRFEREER
Al

(b)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:
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SREE Financial assets
FHRE Investment securities
—RBERATIE  — amortised cost
—RAZEH — held-to-maturity
SHER Financial liabilities
BEIERES DeDt securities issted

MErERITAQXTFERDER
TIERBERRR ¢

)y ReEREHES

RelkEHESERR
T3k LR HBRBE
BEBRIIK FRER
B RFEMNEKREE -
ERER(ERBasEd
KB A) Wbt A E
DERERRBEER
REFNRTER TS
MERRGFHAE L
FRRERE - Bt
FROAFEHNERE

(i)
B SR A 7 HIRR R (B B
it

Stk - NER D B R
MERBEEMNEEGTER -
At - EFRAS BN IRE
ERAHENE IR -

LT

carrying
amount

F#T
HK$'000

11,546,833

37,148,896

R=B-NE+ZB=1-A
As at 31 December 2018
AYE

Fair

value
TAT
HK$'000

WZE—t+E+-A=1-H

As at 31 December 2017
REE AYE
Carrying Fair
amount value
AL T
HK$'000 HK$'000

E-F
Level 1
T
HK$'000

B
Level 2
TAT
HK$'000

s
Level1
T
HK$'000

]
Level 2
AT
HK$'000

11,530,161

11,530,161 = = = = =
10,347,834 10,961,660 10,263,983 291617

36,588,554 - 36,588,554 34698760  34,830933 - 34830933

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

()  Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
and are stated net of impairment allowance.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

(i) Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a reasonable
estimate of the fair value.
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(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(Vii)

Investment securities at amortised cost
(previously held-to-maturity)

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price guotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund is determined with reference
to the estimated rates of investment return for
future years, approximating its carrying values.

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from debt
securities executed for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.
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Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

(viii)

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

4.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for the
Company and its insurance subsidiaries respectively;

To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

To support the Group’s stability and growth;
To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adequacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.
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The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the year,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set out
in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, which is made by
reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules (BCR), the calculation
basis of capital ratio under the BCR follows the basis of
consolidation for financial reporting with the exclusion of
subsidiaries which are “regulated financial entities” (e.g.
insurance companies). It is because these entities are
supervised by a regulator and are subject to the maintenance
of adequate capital (e.g. solvency ratio) to support business
activities comparable to those prescribed for banks under the
BCR. The investment cost of these unconsolidated regulated
financial entities is deducted from the capital base whilst the
corresponding related exposures are also excluded from the
calculation of risk-weighted assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2018 2017

F#&T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

f&Zx Share capital 7,000,000 2,000,000

@ Reserves 8,150,766 7,662,473

BB Impairment allowance 3,290 386

kR - Deductions:

—RIEEWB AR — Investment in regulated

"E subsidiaries (8,000,000) =

— HAbHRER — Other deductions (2,971) (183,796)

BAREE B Total capital base 7,151,085 9,479,063

BARFEE Capital Adequacy Ratio 26.8% 21.0%
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4.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position but
are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
and net amounts, as well as provide additional information on
how such credit risk is mitigated.

Gank
VL

REE
Carrying

amounts
on the
consolidated

R=B-NEt=AZt-A
As at 31 December 2018

RBEYRESRRHRRR

HigneE'
Related amount
not set off
in the consolidated
statement
of financial position*
fiESMIA

IR
Carrying
amounts

onthe

consolidated

+E+ZA=+-H
A at 31 December 2017

FJIHAYF AR
Related amount
not set off
in the consolidated
statement
of financial position”

I

statementof  Derivative ~ BAKHS B+ ctementof  Dervatve  B4RBS Far
financial financial Cash Net financial financial Cash Net
position instruments  collateral amount* position  instruments collateral amount*

TR TEn TER Tn BT BT T AL

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000

SHEE Financial assets
EEmiTEeR Positive fair values for
TADTE derivative financial
Instruments 161,047 (98,859) (58,154) 4,034 333,727 (79,634) (207,029) 47,064
LRER Financial liabilities
BEMITEER Negative fair values for
TAATE derivative financial
Instruments 264,386 (98,859) (137,483) 28,044 119,064 (79.634) (29.315) 10,115
& [ 1B RE1E X RIEAR & B ISR 0 3% 41 81 * Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
H$5 | B FEAEEL BN statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
FZEEEEIHEREMORNESRA liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
B/ AESH - similar agreements including CSA.
* R FREAEER SR BET o Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject

HRWEWMEE/ARE BRERSE
B S5EFEY  HIWEEREMN
SRAME/ EENENKEFELH -

to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group’s
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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BASEE T et RIRER

AEERAHT - BAMBREENEERA
BEIRBEARZEZ A RBR - AKEE
BREEELBIEMAR (BREREMIEN
THARREBEELNSIERY) - &G
PriEfbat R FIET -

5.1

5.2

BEREEHIRERE

AEESRNEETAS - AEHFT
HEAEEER AEEETEMEES
1B AREH B RERRERER
R E A A EAE IR FIET - Bt
BEREMAE - NEEFNABEEE
= BRI R A B AR TR H) 48
FERHEL HIE - et RAERERE
# KRR A R BRR S E S
PORL/MAEHETE R B R B R RN ZE
H o

EREER T NF+-A=1t—
B HOIRE BT E 19 MR EE -

— R IRBE R R R AR R AE
BHRRPRER

AEBBERRIERES - T
BARRPREME  BRBEREETE
HY B 2R B 2R B R B AR RO = EY
AR A2 ELERARNMABNR
B RFES - ERERRPREE
- AKEERBRREREOTET
HEEPRBXMELAB RER - &
BETRNERNBRREER &K
RIRRAMYEN S - EEREKHR
HEIDERBRR S EERIRA ©

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

5.1.

5.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. It is required to
exercise judgements in making assumptions and estimates
to incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecast of economic conditions.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December 2018
is disclosed in Note 19.

Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios of general insurance business

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to the
loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and the local
property market in making estimation of the payments which
the Group is required to make in fulfilling its obligations under
the insurance and guarantee contracts. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating the ultimate claim
amount are reviewed regularly.
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REBEER=_E—\F+_A=+—
B R IRE B K 27 R E ©

53. ASRREBHRREHAE

RBANABHERENBE 12
EEBRRERERLHRE - AL
TEBRSRCE B BAR
FRE - BEREITRT -

REAEER - \F+-_HA=+—
B RIRE (BT 27 AR EE ©

SEEH

AEETIZERENEREEEMMNE
BRE - —REBRASBRBES - Kt
X% - PIIMRIRHEE S ABARIBERN
BEITNEB TR - REREERKEGRIAR
MELANBHRESETHRE  HERRK
BEBOMNBES - N _T—tF A&
E{ER— (AR BERIMRIBHEBXS
ERE— D BRERE EIR D B ME BT
- BEER T \FxREEETAKR
RESER  CRHINUT=EREDE -

—RRREIBBERBRR  ZERBR
TNEREERER -  ASRREEFS
X% BEAEMMAREERBEEER
WREH REBBRTEEMER -

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2018 is disclosed in Note 27.

5.3. Insurance contract liabilities of life insurance
business

The liability for insurance contracts is based on current
assumptions with a margin for risk and adverse deviation.
The main assumptions used relate to mortality, longevity,
expenses and discount rates, which are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2018 is disclosed in Note 27.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage
purchase and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from
mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage business.
In 2017, the Group was organised in such a way that resource
allocation and performance measurement were based on the
Group as a whole in a single segment for mortgage related
businesses. With the completion of corporate restructuring and the
launch of annuity business in 2018, the following three operating
segments are identified.

General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.
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TRINTAEBRHE-"ZT - N\F+=A The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
=+—HIEFELESHHBA - BT K information for operating segments of the Group for the year ended
H&EH - 31 December 2018.

BEEER
HAEER
%

Asset VaR- k]

purchase — R ASRE Inter-
and General Life  segment @t
servicing  insurance  insurance elimination Total
T TR TR THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ-Z-N\E+=H Yearended 31 December 2018

=+—-HIEEE
FMBBA Net interest income 438,904 95,264 2,041 - 536,209
FRRELEE Net insurance business results - 243,509  (549,885) - (306,376)
Hi A Other income 162,269 34 184,952 (97,622) 249,633
HETIN Operating income 601,173 338,807 (362,892) (97,622) 479,466
LET Operating expenses (240,840)  (166,087)  (103,083) 97,622  (412,388)
RetRERAALHH  Operating profit before impairment 360,333 172,720  (465,975) - 67,078
BRI/ (BE) Write back/(charge) of impairment

allowances 153 (280) (7) - (134)

BRAE A& A Profit before taxation 360,486 172,440  (465,982) - 66,944
bR Taxation 59,614
AEERT Profit for the year 126,558
RZZ-N\F As at 31 December 2018

+=A=+-H
SHEE Segment assets 49,699,136 5,008,698 8,008,883  (235,148) 62,481,569
DEEE Segment liabilities 42,550,765 1,863,272 3,408,971 (235,148) 47,587,860
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7. FIRUAN 7. Interestincome

B4 Loan portfolio 162,583 165,467
HehEES Cash and short-term funds 557,744 320,395
BHIEE Investment securities 509,383 416,471
1,229,710 902,333

8. FEXH 8. Interest expense

RITER N B EITERES Bank loans and debt securities issued 607,367 349,328
Hfth Others 86,134 45,427
693,501 394,755
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9. RIGEBEBIUEIR 9. Revenue account for insurance business

2018

— R AERK
General Life @t

insurance insurance Total
TET TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERE (M (a) RMTEE27(0)()  Gross premiums written

(Note (a) and Note 27(a)(i)) 634,757 2,780,240 3,414,997
BRIRARE (HFE27)) Reinsurance premiums (Note 27(a)(i)) (69,018) - (69,018)
RER 25 (P 27()0)) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)(i)) 565,739 2,780,240 3,345,979
AmBRENEEFE Movement in unearned premiums, net (188,327) - (188,327)
DimenRE R (K:E27@)(0)  Netpremiums earned (Note 27(a)(i) 377,412 2,780,240 3,157,652
RRESTFE  BNFEK Net claims incurred, benefits paid
REFFALRED and movement in policyholders’
(P =E 27(a)i) B BTz 27(0)i)) liabilities (Note 27(a)(ii) and
Note 27(D)(i)) (3,392) (3,317,645) (3,321,037)
BERERHREFE Net premiums earned after provisions 374,020 (537,405) (163,385)
Hex Commission expenses (154,121) (12,268) (166,389)
BEIL Levy expenses - (212) (212)
BREATAENBSI L Reinsurers' share of commission
expenses 23,610 - 23,610
ReTHFERBES L Net commission and levy expenses (130,511) (12,480) (142,991)
NkEeRABS Lk Net premiums earned after
ERBRE TSR commission and levy expenses 243,509 (549,885) (306,376)
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2017

— AR

2017

General

insurance

T

HK$'000

FRE (k@) RHIFE27(a)() Gross premiums written (Note (a) and Note 27(a)(i)) 493,459

BRERIRE (FIFE27(a) (i) Reinsurance premiums (Note 27(a)(i)) (76,383)

REEF5 (HE27(@) () Net premiums written (Note 27(a)(i) 417,076

R ERE R E 8558 Movement in unearned premiums, net (64,662)

Bim R EFEE (s 27() () Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)()) 352,414

FAZRE 558 (M 27(a) (i) Net claims incurred (Note 27(a)(ii) 641)

BB mBREFHE Net premiums earned after provisions 351,773

Be i Commission expenses (166,252)

BREAREAENAEIH Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 25,798

B s Net commission expenses (140,454)

A E mBREFE Net premiums earned after commission 211,319
B 5E - Note:

@ HRRRBEBMES  EREEZEZRARS
RZEZZBEFRREL  NBIRERE
Bhfs BAt BlM L R E B RN EN —
FREFEIRISRE

(a) For general insurance business, gross premiums were mainly derived from
mortgage insurance cover on mortgage loans and on reverse mortgage loans
with a small portion from mortgage insurance cover on lump-sum loans to
owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land premium
settlement.
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10. HUA 10. Other income
2017
FABT
HK$'000
REINEE ST Income from placements with the
Wz Exchange Fund 184,934 -
REERERA KBTI Early prepayment fees and late charges 384 466
b =R Exchange difference 12,335 171,147
SRTARNTEES Net change in fair value of
FER financial instruments 11,840 (1,057)
LAAFEE(EET AR Net loss on investments at fair value
B EEFE through profit or loss (13,500) -
ERERRR B A Dividend income from listed investments 58,626 82,878
HH S T SH A AN B IR RO 4R Net gains on disposal of investments
W e 8E at amortised cost 192 =
A SR E M Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
HRE (FI5E13) investments (Note 13) - 163,538
EHfth Others (5,178) (2,488)
249,633 414,484
TRTARAFEZBEENATZENE Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
M (EERAFEE RE R T AR TE the aggregate of (i) HK$324 million fair value loss on hedging
B8R 24 BB (T —+L4F : 167688 instruments designated as fair value hedge (2017: HK$1,676 million
TTURES) R EHRIE E AFERZE 325 BT gain) and HK$325 million fair value gain on the hedged items
(ZE—tF 1676BBTEE)  R(>0)T (2017: HK$1,676 million loss); and (i) HK$7 million fair value gain
HeRBE RS EANTETIARTFE on derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes
W= 7008 BT (ZF—EF : 2008%E T (2017: HK$2 million loss) and HK$4 million fair value gain on debt
E518) RIEERU AT EZ L ABENE securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
BITEHRESF A FERZELIOEBT(=ZF (2017: HK$1 million).

—+t% 10088 7T) °
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1. 8E5H

11. Operating expenses

BB Staff costs:
— Fe kEH — Salaries and benefits 237,081 176,713
— ER&RA—REHAETE]  — Pension costs-defined
contribution plans 13,576 12,060
PAE Premises:
— e — Rental 49,845 32,420
— HAfth — Others 9,123 6,589
EE¥okn Directors’ fees = -
HEZLENFER Emoluments in respect of directors’
EEHH A AR other services in connection with
M T 2B : the management of the affairs
of the Company:
— ¥e  EBLRIEA — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,367 6,184
— BERIRFTEIFTIE 2 3R — Retirement scheme contributions 633 616
& (3E24) Depreciation (Note 24) 19,371 14,415
BB RS Financial information services 8,259 6,015
B & Consultancy fees 17,248 16,526
MiGHERES SN Marketing and advertising expenses 21,294 15,559
Hib&&E Other operating expenses 29,591 17,099
412,388 304,196

12. EEUATHEN &

12. Auditor’s remuneration

2017

TAT
HK$'000

ZER B & Auditor’'s remuneration:

— BZARTE — Audit services 3,215 1,735

— HA AR — Other services 1,349 2,151
4,564 3,886
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13. HETHHEREMNWZEFE  13. Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale

investments
2018 2017
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEMNHBERERN Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
e F&E investments:
S s = N N — Realisation of amounts recognised
M FERR B FIE in reserves up to 1 January - 83,161
— ANFEEEWE TR — Net gains arising in current year - 80,377
- 163,538
14. F{E#EE 14. Charge of impairment allowances
2018 2017
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB/ (B]5) Charge/(write-back) of impairment
allowances:
— HE REEES (fiE4.2(0)) — Cash and short-term funds (Note 4.2(b)) (95) =
— BHEE — Investment securities
— JRERSHR ARSI IR — amortised cost (Note 4.2(c)(i))
(B &E4.2(C)i)) 197 =
— AAFEE (T AHM — FVOCI (Note 4.2(c)(ii))
2E s (MsE4.2(c)i) 14 =
— B¥4E (MisEs.2() — Loan portfolio (Note 4.2(a)) 18 453

134 453
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15. BilA 15. Taxation
(a) HZFEWBRAMHRIES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBNEH Hong Kong profits tax
— B HFIE — Current tax 17,987 21,676
— BAFERE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (30) 421
17,957 22,097
EIETIE Deferred taxation
— AFEFEGRE)/ZH — (Credit)/charge for current year (77,571) 240
(59,614) 22,337
RS HA R EE AR B0 b AT R AR B A 1R Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5% (=ZZF —tF : 16.5%) A Ft K 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the period. Deferred
STIRBEBNGETEE - EERIBLAE taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
BEEEK16.5% (=T —+F : 16.5%) liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2017:
WEEREGTE PG RFZERE - 16.5%).
REBMBRT AL F TR IBERA S The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
ARERGFENERESENZRNT ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

2018 2017

THET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRE B A Profit before taxation 66,944 828,732
#16.5% (—ZF—+t4F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of

B R E 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 11,046 136,741

RIS 2 Tax effect of;

— BAZTHRA — income not subject to taxation (157,438) (158,786)
— AR — expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 86,808 43,961

— BAFERAE — adjustment in respect of prior years (30) 421

HIECGRME) /S H Taxation (credit)/charge (59,614) 22,337
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(b) EABMRARANNBIEEES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2017
FAT
HK$'000
EHRIEEE Current tax assets (included in
(BRERTEMEE] AN) "Other assets”) - 351
R IBE B Deferred tax assets 77,866 295
77,866 646
EHNHIESE Current tax liabilities 104,077 116,288
RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—BEZ=ZT There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—tF+ZA=+—H  EEERE 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
RARBEHIREIERIE -
REFIR(BE)/BEMNEZHNE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
ARERNEBOT : the movements during the year are as follows:

HERE
MEBERE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances  AVEZEH

tax and  Fairvalue HEEE b
depreciation  provisions changes  Tax losses Total
THR T B Tin T
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-Z—t&—F—H Asat 1 January 2017 2,811 (3,346) 17,195 - 16,660
s AR/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to
income Statement 555 (315) - - 240
ERNFA Credited to equity - - (17,195) - (17,195)
RZE—+F+-A=+—H Asat31December 2017 3,366 (3,661) - - (295)
ks R MR/ (BA) Charged/(credited) to
income Statement 603 (964) - (77,210) (77,571)
R=B-NE+=A=+-8 Asat31December 2018 3,969 (4,625) - (77,210) (77,866)
FETIEE E R RN A B HARKER Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
Bsf I SRR ER TR - sufficient future taxable profits will be available for
RE)FAR B R A R HA A5 S o realisation. The unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
R+ZEARA - EERENELERIE There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
BE/BEFTERE - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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16. IHE&REBHES 16. Cash and short-term funds

RTTIHE Cash at banks 196,590 93,799
RITEAER Time deposits with banks 29,195,211 25,184,391
He MO EeRRE Gross cash and short-term funds 29,391,801 25,278,190
He MEHESHRERE Impairment allowance on cash and
(FEE4.2(b)) short-term funds (Note 4.2 (b)) (946) -
29,390,855 25,278,190
HEeREREMS HERZFRE4SEA For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
BIEATERS B R =EA N2 B equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
KA © months’ maturity from the date of transaction.
2018 2017
FET FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIRE Cash at banks 196,590 93,799
RITEEIER Time deposits with banks 14,581,211 14,992,391
He hEREEEE Cash and cash equivalents 14,777,801 15,086,190
17. FEWH) B B EERR 17. Interest and remittance receivables
2018 2017
FET FiBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARSI R EUAS, Interest receivable from:
— FEEELD — interest rate swap contracts 161,582 143,319
— BHEE — investment securities 135,392 109,921
— RITE T — time deposits with banks 99,291 47,075
B A R YT B K Interest receivable and instalments,
BN in transit from loan portfolio 41,654 43,663

437,919 343,978
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18. FTHESMTH

TTETRMER

AREBER THNOTE T BES A EE
M & BER o

ERERNAORERRBHATELE
EHERBE L EINENARE - B
RN RiE A — AR 2R B AL
SR e REMNFRE o HEERE
B H KA ME S HER - [RET
EREHIN - ZEXH TS REHRA
T ARBENEERBRAXZH TR
EETHEEEMEERMAONER
AR AEBIRBRENEBLR S
HFRBEEES  FHEENERE

B -

ETEEERIANEESE B
R A M BAHRKRERN T AR~
ELLER R ELE - HERL RS R EAR
KRESREBNTHEXTEZ AR
& Bk - R R AN E E R EY
EERERRR - BETIHHEKE
KR EGFRARE) - STETAARE
HAKBELEN(BE) LTH (A
BINTE - TESRMITANALK
EEROBERE - LRANHANRE
BE  ROTETAERMEENBELZ
RNTHEME - ATRE TR RIBRE) © FiFs
BNTETARFEHNTX

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial
position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as
a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign
exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate
contractual or notional amounts of derivative financial
instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate
fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can
fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of
derivative instruments held are set out below.
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=l &4/
255 ARE 258 ATE

Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional BE B notional BE A&
amounts Assets Liabilities  amounts Assets  Liabilities
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

() PREFREREIAEN () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

fTETE for accounting purposes
M E Interest rate swaps 3,023,290 11,041 7 3017791 6,235 (2,188)
EREHAN Currency forwards 3,315,395 700 (565) - - -
1,741 (642) 6,235 2,188)
(i) ATEHATEIR (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fil= i 5 Interest rate swaps 14,246,974 129,153 (78,663) 13,908,877 176,586 (65,975)
£l Currency swaps 8,455,076 20,153 (185081 7302494 150,906 (50901)
149,306 (263,744) 327,492 (116,876)
ERRITETEEE/ Total recognised derivative
(Bf) &% assets/(liabilities) 161,047  (264,386) 333,727 (119,064)
(b) i ihiEED (b) Hedging activities
MWOTE TEEARAFEY IR T Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
Y e EEME  STAETEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
MRS G S EHRER - REEMAFE fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
¥R EREARNRERD BTES currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk and
EEN T EEABEEE TS| M foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change in
I =& [, [ A9 B L B ) | 2R ) B s s fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
HeR—ZE—NE+-_A=+—H0HEF no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
—T—+F+—-A=+—H8 TET December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

AIEEARSREPITETA -
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19. ERESFEEHE 19. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERMBESREE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2018 2017
TF#ET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEZRBERHEE Residential mortgage portfolio 6,179,353 7,484,605
JERIEERAE Non-mortgage portfolio 263,377 345,222
6,442,730 7,829,827
EFORERE (FisE4.2()) Allowance for loan impairment
(Note 4.2(a)) (666) (386)
6,442,064 7,829,441
BEFCREREAZEEERMAE MAKRE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
BARSEMRH BT ¢ outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2018 2017
ERRERERELER Total allowance for loan impairment
BRFEHNB L as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.010% 0.005%
EREFURERER - EZRERm Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
®) B RITH{E ° into account the current market value of the collateral.
2018 2017
VEREN=E7 éf@%ﬁﬁlam Gross impaired loan portfolio as
HeE %ﬁﬂﬁﬁ a percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.007% 0.005%
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(b) EXRHEAMWMEHERETF (b) Net investments in finance leases included in loan
¥ portfolio
2018
RRHE RIREREL
REEREN FMEWA RIEHAE
REHRE Interest Total
Present value income minimum
of minimum relating lease
lease payments to future payments
receivable periods receivable
THERT THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEMFRIR | Amounts receivable:
——FR — within one year 25,533 5,341 30,874
— —FREREA — after one year but within five years 85,546 16,329 101,875
— %% — after five years 142,565 17,318 159,883
253,644 38,988 292,632
2017
AREER IR L
IR ERIEL FEMA BB
FIRHE Interest Total
Present value income minimum
of minimum relating lease
lease payments to future payments
receivable periods receivable
THET FTAT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMRIR | Amounts receivable:
——FR — within one year 30,678 6,618 37,296
— —FRERER — after one year but within five years 109,174 20,535 129,709
— RfFtk — after five years 193,169 23,879 217,048
333,021 51,032 384,053
VR 75 Bk BR B T 49 FE UUIR 3R 1E H B FUR B No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for finance
1 e lease receivable.
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20. EEHRE 20. Investment securities
(a) DIAFEETANHEb2EW (a) Investment securities at FVOCI
EEHIEEHIRE

BAFESIRNEEES

2017*

TAET
HK$'000

Debt securities at fair value

REB LM Listed in Hong Kong 587,702 =

REBHIN Listed outside Hong Kong 2,128,745 =

JEETM 2,375,217 -
DAFEZsT AEMEE  Total FVOCI securities

W B 54258 5,091,664 -

RAHER A AR 2 E RS E
HFEREBES  HPAORERE
ERASRANE  MAKERAUE
BERES EBRAMN B RABRK
BeapnBRenEkHESREENE
iH o

BBETHBER AT AR FEZET
AEMEERENESAT

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

2017*
TFHT
HK$'000
IRIT R E At & phikiE Banks and other financial institutions 4,266,072 =
NI Corporate entities 795,487 -
N T Public sector entities 30,105 -
5,091,664 -
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ARAFEZ T AL EE R ETE The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:
FH AT

R—H—B (f3E3.1(c) As at 1 January (Note 3.1(c)) 5,480,912 -
30 Additions 1,307,246 -
B Redemption (1,693,196) =
i3] Amortisation (2,534) -
NEEEE) Change in fair value (7,182) -
HNISTE = 2R Exchange difference 6,418 =
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 5,091,664 -
* RIRPEE 20(d) FTiKEE - ZSERER_T—+ e These investments were classified as available-for-sale in 2017 as
FHERAHEEE - disclosed in Note 20(d)
BRRE  GEEXRASEEERRA Information on the impairment, credit quality and the Group’s
BRI 2(0) HEE - exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 4.2(c).
(b) LIAFEEILTAEBREMES (b) Investment securities at FVPL
"E

2017*

TAET
HK$'000

BATESIRNRZ S E®A Exchange-traded funds and real estate

e REMEREERES investment funds at fair value
REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 543,612 =
AAFEZET ABz=MFES  Total FVPL securities

Gk 543,612 -
NEE AT & B AN G 2 3UA The Group classifies other investment securities in
RN EZ T AE 2R EER exchange-traded funds and real estate investments trusts
RGFMEBEES REHEREETE at FVPL, which do not quality for measurement at either
SEEMBHEESERUNATEE amortised cost or FVOCI.

et AdEss -
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AT EZ T ABmESRE The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:
Bt -
2017*
FH&T
HK$'000
m—H—HB (f73.1(a)) As at 1 January (Note 3.1(a)) 1,657,750 -
0 Additions 16,644 -
HeE Sale (1,096,226) =
NFEEE) Change in fair value (35,278) =
SN BE 3 =58 Exchange difference 722 -
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 543,612 =
L RIEMIFE20(d) FTHE R © ZSHRENR -2 —+ & These investments were classified as available-for-sale in 2017 as
FAEARAELEE - disclosed in Note 20(d).
(c) ISR ATIIRAIEFHFIRE (c) Investment securities at amortised cost
2018 2017*
F#ET AT
HK$°'000 HK$'000
R SHR AR IR B B B 5 Debt securities at amortised cost
REBLM Listed in Hong Kong 6,317,348 -
RBEABRIN T Listed outside Hong Kong 2,106,090 -
8,423,438 -
LT Unlisted 3,124,837 -
SR AR I IR M) 78 5 4% B Gross investment securities at
4R amortised cost 11,548,275 -
BB AR DINR H B AR EH) Impairment allowance on
BB (MIFE4.2(0)) investment securities at
amortised cost (Note 4.2(c)(i)) (1,442) -
REESHRCAR YIRS 54858 Total amortised costs securities 11,546,833 =
REEBERRARFEUTREZER The Group classifies investment securities as at amortised
B B RREFRED B AREHK cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
ARBNIR
. EBEXNEEAFEEEMN . the asset is held within a business model with the
WREHReRE + & objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and
. RIRE KEFIEIEE B HIR R e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
enENEBARINAREH cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
REBRSBENFE interest on the principal outstanding.
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R ATHIE AR Bl o A B S K AN IR Amortised cost securities are analysed by categories of
ST issuers as follows:

SRTT M E fih 5 Rl IR Banks and other financial institutions 5,075,984 -
NI SE S Corporate entities 4,904,367 -
N Public sector entities 540,768 -
BT Central governments 1,027,156 =
11,548,275 -
TR SE PR ARSI IR RO 75 25 /) B2 B ARk il 4n The movement in amortised cost securities is summarised as
T~ follows:
2018 2017*
F#ET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
m—A—H (ktsE3.1()) As at 1 January (Note 3.1(b)) 10,347,834 =
N Additions 1,855,361 -
HE RIED Sale and redemption (653,843) =
R Amortisation (11,141) =
HNEESTE H Z 58 Exchange difference 10,064 =
R+—A=+—H As at 31 December 11,548,275 -
& RIRFTEE20(e) FTHEEE - SR FIREN = # These investments were classified as held-to-maturity in 2017 as
T +FENBERFHEEH - disclosed in Note 20(e).
BHRE  EEEERAEEEER Information on the impairment, credit quality and the Group’s
B 0 & R M5 4.2(C) #RER o exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 4.2(c).
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(d)

o[ HEESH (d) Available-for-sale securities
2017
FAIT
HK$'000
A THEYIRH BT Debt securities at fair value
REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong - 279,317
REBHIN L Listed outside Hong Kong - 2,315,572
FEET Unlisted - 2,886,023
RN AR E At B 5 Other securities at fair value
RBEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong - 1,657,750
A E B AR Total available-for-sale securities - 7,138,662
HihBLHERGMEEE S RFEHME Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
REETEES ° estate investment trusts.
REATHRIBERI DT AT & B 5 40 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
™ issuers as follows:
2017
FBIT
HK$'000
RITREAM S RS Banks and other financial institutions - 4,040,368
NaElfbE Corporate entities - 909,924
N T Public sector entities - 30,740
H Others - 2,157,630
- 7,138,662
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AR EREAFNZEEBAmT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:

Rn—A—H As at 1 January - 6,977,677
)i Additions - 3,144,426
HEKIED Sale and redemption - (3,212,744)
#oE Amortisation - (4,493)
NEEZE) Change in fair value - 191,162
HNESTE 5 =5 Exchange difference - 42,634
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December - 7,138,662
le) WHEEIIHES (e) Held-to-maturity securities
2018 2017
FET FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R SRR AR IR ) (B 7E 5 Debt securities at amortised cost
RBEBLM Listed in Hong Kong - 5,501,627
REBHFIN Listed outside Hong Kong - 1,959,044
- 7,460,671
JE LT Unlisted - 2,887,163
FHEELHFESRER Total held-to-maturity securities - 10,347,834
REITHIERER ST A 2R 8% 5 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
N issuers as follows:

HRIT R A & RS Banks and other financial institutions - 4,955,910
NGIRSE Corporate entities - 4,299,090
YN T Public sector entities - 471,079
FR R Central governments - 621,755

- 10,347,834

262 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2018



A IRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAEZIMRFNESBMMNT

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised

as follows:
2017
FHET
HK$'000
n—H—H As at 1 January - 9,931,665
30 Additions - 3,112,996
fE [l Redemption - (2,746,656)
! Amortisation - (17,279)
HNESBE 3 =58 Exchange difference - 67,108
Rt+=—A=+—H As at 31 December - 10,347,834

21. SMNEEEER

REBEEKEBFEE A RINIIMNERES TR
DEABUATESELTAEZENERE
E-R-_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—8 " INE
EeBREGBTIEEL(ZZE—LF:
/) BREASBERIERL(ZE—F
F:E)NERE2HREEHDNE RHEH
REZEAIUZA o

INERESFFREMNIINEESNREMES
REHREEAES  UXHEEREHRS -
SNEERSFHREREIZFETE - REA
AME ' EREDREREBSBENRSF
BFEHEH RN FFE=FHRFESD
FHREXR(TRB/0%)FTHE - UBSER
o RMERESTE  AREDIRE
AEZEREIMNEDHFEETE -

21. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of HKMCA with the
Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. As at 31 December 2018, the balance of the placements
with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$7.7 billion (2017: nil),
comprising a total principal sum of HK$7.6 billion (2017: nil) plus
income earned and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the
reporting date.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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22. Interests in subsidiaries

22. MIBABIRE

R-BE—N\FE+-_A=+—H " AQAK

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2018

MEARFEET are as follows
HA R
HEAH
(FEHREA)
HAR Frigi a8
ERTRAERAFE (FHREA) BA%
(RBRER) FristR G Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of  shares held by
R AR Lt 2 and fully paid up shares held by  the Company's
Place of TEEK share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation  Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
BRIRBERAR AR B BARERIZIEE - A8 1,000,000 (E&R) 100% Nam
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong EFEE « REBIENT  HK$1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
Management EREBENREREYREE
Limited SERNEE RN ER TS
Mortgage purchases and
servicing, funding of
microfinance loans, and
origination of reverse
mortgage loans and
loans for land premium
settlement in relation
to subsidised sale flats
referred by banks
EERERRERAR" BB —RRRBER 3,000,000,0007 7T (L&) 100% ek
HKMC Insurance Limited®  Hong Kong General insurance business  HK$3,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
BAFEARAR" B RERBES 5,000,000,00038 7T (& @A%) 100% TEm
HKMC Annuity Limited” Hong Kang Long term insurance business HK$5,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
EARBIARA (F—) BA RIZ-\EURMEEES  1,000%7T (SRR) A NER
BRAR* Hong Kong No business activity in 2018 HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
HKMC Funding Corporation
(1) Limited*
Bauhinia MBS Limitec* REHE REZZ-\FUEFHEEE  1,000ET(LER) TR T
Cayman Islands  No business activity in 2018 US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
EARBEEREERAR BF TEB 187 (BEAR) NEm 100%
HKMC Credit & Guarantee  Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage &5 NEEAE 1L (EER) Naf 100%
Credit & Guarantee Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
Corporation Limited
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REBEEBCABEPDIIRT - ELARRERE
RHBEE - FLARRBARBERME
TRIBEF MK - MARRWREFHE
LN RHIRRAD ©

RZFE-NF_RF KRrAITE
2,999,999,900 & 7T + bAfH R ERBRIR A R
EEITRAREARIRET - B ARERE
THE - MR=E—N\FEA ' HERRE
RAERBEEE BENRE - ADETHRA
RAEB ) —RIRBRET - £ LREBE
AARCHHENKEBTERLE —REREXE
TSR HE o

RZZ—NFNA - BINBEBINEES RN
R EHRHEEEINSO BB THRA - BB - AR
AIMBEBFEERAEE4,999,999,90087C -
ERBBESRALEFSEBHRAE -
RZZ—N\FRHA  BEFSLRERRBRE
EERRE TR EABKERBARBKRE
ﬁ% °

23. EAfRIE - RERHEMEE

These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares in
these companies which are set up for mortgage purchases and mortgage-
backed securities issuance.

In February 2018, the Company injected HK$2,999,999,900 to make up
issued and paid-up capital of HK$3 billion of the HKMCI without allotting and
issuing new shares and the HKMCI was granted formal authorisation from
the Insurance Authority to carry on general insurance business which was
transferred from the Company in May 2018. Subsequent to the said transfer, the
Company withdrew its authorisation to carry on general insurance business in
or from Hong Kong.

In April 2018, the Government through the Exchange Fund provided additional
share capital of HK$5 billion into the Company. HK$4,999,999,900 was injected
by the Company into the HKMCA on the same day as share capital for the latter
to operate the annuity business. The HKMCA was granted authorisation by the
Insurance Authority to carry on long term insurance business in or from Hong
Kong in May 2018.

23. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2017

FHT

HK$'000

DR SEEE S Corporate club debentures 750 750

EE MR RIE CSA receivable 137,483 29,315
EREHEBRITEENEIEES  Receivables from debt securities executed

Y FE W IR for settlement after the reporting date 488,021 =

H fth fE I RIE Other receivable 172,306 3,279

W& E Repossessed assets — 4,324

HhEE Other assets 30,931 29,486

829,491 67,154
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24. BEIEEE . Fixed assets
WAERE
BREEE
office
HEMELEE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and BN Motor ek
improvement fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
T#R TR TR T#x T#x
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W=E—+%£—F—H Net hook amount as at
REFE 1 January 2017 5,305 669 11,848 205 18,527
AE Additions 11,879 812 17,506 - 30217
& (fzE1) Depreciation charge (Note 11) 6,131) (599) (7,598) 87) (14,415)
WZE—+F+=-A=+—H Nethook amountasat
IREFE 31 December 2017 11,553 882 21,776 118 34,329
RE Additions 7,961 4,208 26,619 - 38,808
& (fzE1) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (5579) (1,074) (12,630) 89) (19.371)
R=E-N\E+=A=+—H Netbhook amount as at
IREFE 31 December 2018 13,935 4,036 35,765 30 53,766
R=B-\E£+=-A=t+-H Asat31December 2018
KAME Cost 47,755 12,759 218,355 775 279,644
ZHE Accumulated depreciation (33,820) 872 (182,590) (745) (225,878)
RERE Net book amount 13,935 4,036 35,765 30 53,766
WZE—+5+-R=1—H8 Asat31December 2017
XA ME Cost 39,794 8,576 191,736 775 240,881
ZHE Accumulated depreciation (28,241) (7,694) (169,960) (657) (206,552)
REFE Net book amount 11,553 882 21776 118 34,329
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25. FERTHIE

AT BIAHENFE

25. Interest payable

2017

TAET
HK$'000

Interest payable from:

— BBITESES — debt securities issued 229,577 181,799
— PS4 — interest rate swap contracts 20,088 5,927
— BB & — other liabilities 7,803 4,407

257,468 192,133

26. FEFHIRIE - FEIRI R EH & 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
==

& liabilities
2017
FBT
HK$'000
FEIIRIA R ER X Accounts payable and accrued expenses 248,121 374,373
HibBE Other liabilities 4,762,799 4,945,650
E A Other provision 50,759 43,240
5,061,679 5,363,263

Hih B EREF/NEREERTE TR
RIEB AT EIAERE R (B 0k
B = K 48RRI 2 ) 370,511,000 T (=&
—+ 4 : 626,271,000 7T ) (MizE33) - 2
MERR-ZZEZE=F+-_AK_ZZTMF
—AERNEENZRBEREETHEMA
i B IR JE X {2 4,392,288,0008 T (==
—+4F : 4,319,379,000% 7T °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee and fund received
(net of claims and related expenses) of HK$370,511,000 (2017:
HK$626,271,000) under the special concessionary measures of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 33) and the deferred
consideration of HK$4,392,288,000 (2017: HK$4,319,379,000) used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government in December 2003 and January 2004.
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27. RIBEBRRBREEE

EZ

6ross
HK$'000

2018

BRR
Reinsurance
HK$'000

HE
Net
HKS'000

tH
Gross
HK$'000

2017

ARk
Reinsurance
HK$'000

27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

HE
Net
HK$'000

—RRRES General insurance:
ARHRERERERERE Provision for uneamed premiums and
guarantee fees 1,290,372 166,383 1,123,989 1,095,805 160,143 935,662
RRRZER: Provision for outstanding claims:
—BEH/ (BRE)ER — claims reported/(recovery) 2,236 (1) 2,237 713 193 6942
—BELRRHRFHZ — claims incurred but not reported 30,236 5,136 25,100 27210 4265 2945
32,472 5,135 27,337 34,345 4,458 29.887
1,322,844 171,518 1,151,326 1,130,150 164,601 965,549
AERE Life insurance:
REFEARE Policyholders' liabiities 3,284,529 - 3284529 - - -
4,607,373 171,518 4,435,855 1,130,150 164,601 965,549
(a) —BRIRIGERE (a) General insurance
)y FEBEERERSEREY (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
AW premiums and guarantee fees
2018 2017
2 AR #E ig Rk
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
R-A-H Asat 1January 1,095,805 160,143 935,662 1,013,155 142,155 871,000
BUERE (F5E9) Premiums written (Note 9) 634,757 69,018 565,739 193459 76,383 17,076
ERERE (F9) Premiums earned (Note 9) (440,190) (62,778) (377,412) (410,809) (58,395) (352,414)
RTZA=1-H As at 31 December 1,290,372 166,383 1,123,989 1,095,805 160,143 935,662
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(i) KRARBRREBEHEESHOMTOT (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding
claims

2018 17
£2 Bk 8 8 BRR 58

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinslirance Net
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

®-A—H Asat 1 January 34,345 4,458 29,887 35,395 33872 31583

EfBR Claims paid (7,556) - (7,556) (4978) (510) (4.468)

EhEsZ Claims recovery 1,908 294 1,614 2448 257 2191

BEL/(EE)BZR Claims incurred/(written back)

GEDE (Note 9):

—BRHRR — claims reported 749 (488) 1,237 (1316) N1 (1,52)

—BEERRRHRER — claims incurred but not reported 3,026 871 2,155 279% 628 2168
3,775 383 3,392 1,480 839 641

Rt-A=1-H As at 31 December 32,472 5,135 27,337 34345 4458 29,887

(b) ASRE (b) Life insurance
() RERESASESHHN (i)  Analysis of movement in policyholders’ liabilities

2018 217
E2 BiRR FE R Birl 78

Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinstrance Net
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W—A-H Asat 1 January - = - - ; _
EFNRZREMNFR Claims and benefits paid (33,116) - (33,116) - = =
BEERZRREZEARE  Claimsincurred and movement

28) (f9) in policyholders' iabilties (Note9) 3,317,645 - 3317605 - = 5
MMZA=1-H As at 31 December 3,284,529 - 3,284,529 - - -
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(i) EEBRRAEBRTNGE

HREHRBEH - ©BERR
B ERE MER o AR
RNMEZIEERT R -

RIBEARAIEE R B R R R E
BEDATA REE(RSA
BEEE) RADKRA - BLE 5
ABRBREETRAKER TR
FREMERETHEE - TR
REFRASEE-

c) BfExEHAR

HETABRRARE ZE2IHALH
HemERREEERSHBE
REMNBERGT  ARBTIR=F
—N\FEF+ZA=F+—BR=Z—tF
+ZA=+—0H AEEHNRRKRAE
o °

(c)

Key assumptions and reserving approach

For long term insurance contracts, economic
assumptions are continually reviewed and updated.
Non-economic assumptions are reviewed at least
annually.

Based on generally accepted actuarial principles and
in accordance with Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation of
the Insurance Ordinance, the valuation of individual life
liabilities was carried out using the Modified Net Level
Premium Valuation method, subject to a minimum of
the surrender value.

Liability adequacy test

The liability adeguacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as
claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group’s insurance liabilities
are adequate.
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28. BEEITEBESH

28. Debt securities issued

2017

TAET
HK$'000

R SRR AR TR Y B 5 25 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
S MTN 14,540,716 13,260,416
IR ER A TRV E TS5 54858 Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 14,540,716 13,260,416
EEAHHER Y AAFESF Debt securities designated as hedged
B 175 7 5 items under fair value hedge
BT AETEIES DIP notes 1,808,922 2,948,131
FRHIE S MTN 20,799,258 18,490,213
HEE AL HIE B W AR FESm  Total debt securities designated as
MEBEHFRR hedged items under fair value hedge 22,608,180 21,438,344
RIBERABIEESUAFE  Debt securities designated as at fair
BT ABENERES value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition
BT EETEIES DIP notes 143,981 141,946
RYAEREIEE AL ATME  Total debt securities designated as at
B st ABRIERE A% fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition 143,981 141,946
BEETEBRESFERE Total debt securities issued 37,292,877 34,840,706

FRBEHEIT(ZT—F + 8) RIIRHE
REFHEE A A FEZ (L A BN ERH
%o REBHEFZANTFEEZERRELE
FIRAE - RYIBTERE - IBEAUR
FEZLCFABENCHRAEBREDE &
REEREA KR ERE PR AREHFF
BAZ NS EE 2 40,019,0008 L ( ==
—+4F : 42,054,000 7T) °

o

ZERERURTFEIIRNEREERE
REAREZEERREF 5| REMEAXN
B

During the year, no debt securities (2017: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$40,019,000 (2017: HK$42,054,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in

the credit risk of the Group for those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value.
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BBITEREFNZEESHBMMT The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

n—A—H As at 1 January 34,706,897 35,782,600
1T Issuance 34,074,308 28,428,582
B BE[E Less: Redemption (31,289,536) (29,509,026)
HNEE B 5 = 5 Exchange difference 3,154 4,741
HEEERRE Total nominal value 37,494,823 34,706,397
RESHITEE D Unamortised portion of discount (92,638) (85,832)
AN{EFE Fair value adjustment (109,308) 219,641
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 37,292,877 34,840,706
REFETHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
RHES
MTN
FET
HK$'000
BERITSEEE Amount issued at nominal value 34,074,308
B U ERFRIE Consideration received 34,006,865
FTA B #EITHEREFH 18 AL B mE All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
B MBEOTZEEBELFEERE—R Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
LBERRIEERERS - working capital and refinancing.
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29. X 29. Share capital

2017
FAET
HK$'000

BEEITREE : Issued and fully paid:
20 (BT AR 2 billion ordinary shares 7,000,000 2,000,000

RN L A The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:

TERT
HK$°000
R-E—+tF+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 2,000,000
EE Capital injection 5,000,000
R=F-N\F+=B=+—H As at 31 December 2018 7,000,000

30. EAHRAEATETIIMEKXIS  30. Material related party transactions

() ARFIREEZEMN BT HIEKFR (@) The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are owned
RUNERESEIEASMATHES o & by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as Controller of
SERAFENE TS BBEEALE the Exchange Fund. The Group entered into the following
SJUATEARRS : material transactions with the following related parties during

the year:

HTERARERESSERNR S0 Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,

T are as follows:

i) AEEERBEEEEERME (i)  the Group subscribed to the custodian and clearing
ENEBILARRLEERSR agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
IR ATIZ 5t KA ERIER Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid a total fee
% WHNERABEIS0E R amount of HK$1.8 million (2017: HK$1.6 million) to the
T(ZE—EF : 1608HT) HKMA for such services during the year;
KEBSER ERAFER
RZREHER

(il ARRRAFEEE17808% (i) the Company incurred a secondment fee of HK$17.8
TT(ZZE—tF : 1,660857T) million (2017: HK$16.6 million) for secondees from the
ERE  ERNEERERG HKMA during the year;
FAEIMER
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(iv)
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BE
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A7 2 B4R 300 8B TR &
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=+ RIUEREEHE(CE
—tFE) R

TREEESBEBINEESH
SEARRDFSEATEINE S ==
20018 B TTERRR A - LAE Bl
AARREBFEE AR HIEI
B MARREAHZRBR
FERAEABEEINESIE
RBERBRAK  URFEFEEFEA
AR EERE BB — KT o

BTS00 -

(@)

(i)

ARRBRANFE AR A RK
FEBE2IEEL(ZE—+
F 29 EBIL)RIBEN &

AEBERRENFNEHERE
RETE - REABENERE
KF R BB AR @ ERR
BAYERER 1,000/ T8 /UK
ERABNERERER * &
TBERFIRPEESS

(iii)

(iv)

the Company paid a back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2017: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year,

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund has
provided the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving
Credit Facility and there was no outstanding balance as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil); and

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
has committed to inject additional funds up to HK$20
billion into the Company as equity for the purpose of
financing the Company’s additional capital injection
into the HKMCA, and the Company has committed to
inject such additional funds into the HKMCA as equity
to maintain the HKMCA's margin of solvency above a
certain level.

Transactions with the Government are as follows:

(i)

(if)

the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$281
million (2017: HK$293 million) from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated during the year; and

the Group provided a loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee
commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the
Government with details set out in Note 33.
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Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)

the Company provided funding for acquisition and
origination of loans with general insurance cover under
different programmes and schemes of the Company.
Following the transfer of general insurance business
from the Company to the HKMCI effective from 1
May 2018, the HKMCI provided insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by the HMML under the
MIP, and reverse mortgage loans under the Reverse
Mortgage Programme (RMP) and loans for premium
settlement under the Premium Loan Insurance Scheme
originated by the HMML in the course of the ordinary
business; and

the Company as scheme operator, the HMML and
various participating banks as loan originators
entered into loan participation agreements under the
Microfinance Scheme pursuant to which the HMML
would fund all or part of the microfinance loans.

Transactions with the HKMCA or the HKMCI, both being
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are as follows:

the Company provided a facility up to HK$10 billion to
assist the HKMCA in funding its operations in relation
to the annuity business and there was an outstanding
balance of HK$35.1 million as at 31 December 2018
(2017: nil);

the Company provided a facility up to HK$2 billion to
assist the HKMCI in funding its operations and there
was no outstanding balance as at 31 December 2018
(2017: nil);
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(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)
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(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

the Company entered into a cash placement
arrangement with the HKMCI for managing the initial
capital and surplus funds generated in the normal
course of business operations of the HKMCI. The
interest expense thereon was HK$13.6 million during
the year and there was no outstanding balance for the
cash placement from the HKMCI as at 31 December
2018;

the Company entered into a cash placement
arrangement with the HKMCA for managing the initial
capital and surplus funds generated in the normal
course of business operations of the HKMCA. The
interest expense thereon was HK$2.1 million during the
year and there was an outstanding balance of HK$44
million for the cash placement from the HKMCA as at 31
December 2018,

the Company’s general insurance business was
transferred to the HKMCI with effect from 1 May 2018.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Company withdrew its
authorisation to carry on general insurance business
in or from Hong Kong. The Company issued a parental
guarantee in favour of the participating lenders for the
HKMCI's due performance of its obligations arising from
its existing general insurance business programmes
and schemes; and

the Company entered into a novation agreement
with the HKMCA regarding the novation of an annuity
system of HK$6.5 million to the HKMCA.
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(b)

NGB ENGIE S S 53
ERBRESBHELY - ZFERXFHH
ERRATEEERE

R+—A=+—BEMEEEALTH
R/ AERAINT

There were arrangements whereby the Company provided
headoffice corporate support services and funding
arrangements to its subsidiaries. Fees on these transactions
are determined on an arm'’s length basis.

The balances of the amounts due from/to the relevant related
parties as at 31 December are as follows:

HEES B
The Exchange Fund The Government
2018 2017 2018 2017

TR TRL TR TRT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SMNEE ST (HEE21)
Etn B (26 % 33)

FEEEEAS

TEEEEBABRERREEARES
REBERE - BERIEHIAREER
WAL BREERSREEAS -

REEETREEBABNHIIOT

FehEtERESRN

Placements with the Exchange
Fund (Note 21)
Other liabilities (Notes 26 and 33) - =

7,734,934 =

4,762,799 4,945,650

(b) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and senior officers.

Key management personnel’s compensation for the year is
as follows:

2018 2017

FEx TAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 23,270 21,426
BERE 2R A Post-employment benefits 2,274 2,088
25,544 23,514
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31. e 31. Commitments
(a) &F (@) capital
2017
FAT
HK$'000
BEHRERETA Authorised and contracted for 803 4,176
EHUEBRRETA Authorised but not contracted for 42,269 41,784
43,072 45,960
(b) #EEHELD (b) Operating lease
RS SRRk . 1R 8 R AT S S A AR AR Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
4T BV B o SR B E TR o a3 operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
AT ¢ ) \ analysed as follows:
2017
FA&T
HK$'000
MAEYZE Office premises:
— "EZR—F — not later than one year 53,197 49,179
— ZR—FETEZREAF — later than one year and not later
than five years 50,313 94,993

103,510 144,172

32. HIBRIGETEI R LEI%IBETE| 32. Mortgage Insurance Programme and Reverse
Mortgage Programme

R=FE—NFE+=-_A=+—8 ' A£EZ As at 31 December 2018, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
BREET BRI R R IR IRBREA R 237 BT the MIP is approximately HK$23.7 billion (2017: HK$21.1 billion) of
(Z2—+F : 21118%7T) - HF40EET which HK$4 billion (2017: HK$3.5 billion) was ceded to the approved
(ZZF—+tF : 3B5EHT) EMZEBRR reinsurers and the balance of HK$19.7 billion (2017: HK$17.6 billion)
AEIEEBERE - MASRABTAER was retained by the Group.

T97 BB (ZE—+t5F  176BHT) #)

[BLR

RZE—NF+_A=+—80 " X &EE As at 31 December 2018, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
EIENTZIRBERRIZRBEN AR the RMP borne by the Group was approximately HK$9.6 billion
BT (ZZE—CF : 9BETT) ° (2017: HK$6.9 billion).
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33.

34.
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BT o B - 2 fm H R B AR R E 5
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H @ REBERBRA A 0EETFAIEE
T MREFFRERIIEESHRER
& BHERTDIBBEREEEBENFNF
HEREg FFE=FHBNEFNFY
Wk (TRRB0%)FHE - UREERE -

33.

34.

Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provides a loan guarantee product with 80% guarantee
coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary guarantee fee
rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion
reimbursable by the Government. All guarantee fees collected
under this special loan guarantee product are set aside to meet the
relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket expenses. The
remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will be returned
to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government. The Group
is responsible for the operation of the product and the applicable
day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there was no
impact on the consolidated income statement of the Group in
respect of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct
expenses involved. Given that the Group only operates this product
for the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence,
the risk-in-force for this product is not included as the Group's off-
balance sheet exposures.

Events occurring after the reporting period

The Group through its wholly-owned subsidiary, the HKMCI,
entered into a capital placement agreement with the Exchange
Fund in 2019, pursuant to which, on 30 April 2019, the HKMCI
placed HK$3 hillion with the Exchange Fund, and such placements
were invested in the Investment Portfolio of the Exchange Fund
with a rate of return calculated on the basis of the average annual
rate of return on the portfolio over the past six years or the average
annual yield of three-year Government Bond in the previous year
(subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the higher.
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35. AWM BIRA TR #EHE 35. Statement of financial position and reserve

) movement of the Company
BAEXLXATR=_FE—-NE+=A 35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
=t+— BB R 31 December 2018
2018 2017
T FHIL
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReFEHES Cash and short-term funds 27,251,724 25,273,955
FEU A B K% FE 3R Interest and remittance receivables 392,545 337,353
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 161,047 333,727
S 6T Loan portfolio, net 4,219,189 5,110,754
BHIRE : Investment securities:
— UAFEEZ L AR — at fair value through
2EKE other comprehensive income 5,091,664 -
— UAFES T AR — at fair value through profit or loss 543,612 =
— R SHR AR — at amortised cost 8,938,368 =
— AR E — available-for-sale - 7,138,662
—RHEE5H — held-to-maturity - 10,347,834
MBAREE Interests in subsidiaries 10,211,083 2,533,099
BARE - ReRHMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 648,467 67,224
EEEE Fixed assets 30,935 34,329
BERIBEE Deferred tax assets - 319
BRBREE Reinsurance assets - 164,616
EEHAE Total assets 57,488,634 51,341,872
af LIABILITIES
FERFIE Interest payable 257,499 192,133
(ol PNEIRES S Placements by subsidiary 44,000 -
FERIIRIE - ERFS K Accounts payable, accrued
Hi B & expenses and other liabilities 4,604,471 5,362,257
TESMIA Derivative financial instruments 264,386 119,064
EHHEaE Current tax liabilities 87,226 116,288
ELEHIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 3,528 -
REREE Insurance liabilities - 1,130,309
BRITEE B S Debt securities issued 37,292,877 34,840,706
BERE Total liabilities 42,553,987 41,760,757
R EQUITY
A ARGBRAR Capital and reserves attributable to
e the equity holders:
[N Share capital 7,000,000 2,000,000
RERF Retained profits 35.2 7,937,098 5,693,762
[k Contingency reserve 352 - 1,679,837
NN Fair value reserve 35.2 (2,451) 207,516
AL Total equity 14,934,647 9,581,115
BERERAE Total liabilities and equity 57,488,634 51,341,872
BEREERN T NAENA=+HILER Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
FRREFILT o April 2019.
BRER Norman T. L. Chan oA Raymond L. C. Li
FIEE##H77EE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director HiTEEFEF  Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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35.2 R ATHIGEE 35.2 Reserves of the Company
REER RRfEE ATERE
Retained Contingency  Fair value o)
profits reserve reserve Total
TET FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z—+tF-A—-H As at 1 January 2017 4,822,686 1,739,389 82,320 6,644,395
AEREHN Profit for the year 811,524 - - 811,524
Hit 2 Other comprehensive income:
AHEERFNATEZE Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities
— REBWEFE — net unrealised gains - - 191,162 191,162
— LEREE — realisation on disposal - = (83,161) (83,161)
—HA — tax effect - - 17,195 17,195
AFEEEEKEESE Total comprehensive income
for the year 811,524 - 125,196 936,720
RSB R Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
R (R B 388 ) 50% 5 75% risk premium earned from
Bl retained profits to
contingency reserve (200,730) 200,730 - -
HEREEREZREE Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits 260,282 (260,282) = -
RZZ—t&+=A=+-H As at 31 December 2017 5,693,762 1,679,837 207,516 7,581,115
ﬂ%ﬂ??ﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬂ”% 95k Changes on adoption of HKFRS 9
&S 200,511 - (202,799) (2,289)
R=Z2-N\F-A—-AH Restated balance as
BEkt at 1 January 2018 5,894,273 1,679,837 4717 7,578,827
KER R Profit for the year 362,988 - - 362,988
Hi2ENE Other comprehensive income:
ARTEEA T ARMEEARE  Change in the fair value of
HEBES A FEZD debt securities at FVOCI - - (7,182) (7,182)
LARF(E% @Eﬁ\ﬁ’rﬂ%@”&é Change in the loss allowance of
WEBESBREGED debt securities at FVOCI - - 14 14
AEEEEKEESE Total comprehensive income
for the year 362,988 - (7,168) 355,820
HRE 5&?&%‘J%T§§E§%E@ \ Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
E\f‘ﬂﬁ?*% 950% 3 75% risk premium earned from retained
ERIRIHR profits to contingency reserve (63,784) 63,784 = =
BREREE Transfer of contingency reserve 1,743,621 (1,743,621) - -
R=ZF-NF+-A=t—-H  Asat31December 2018 7,937,098 - (2,451) 7,934,647
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36. EERR S » RUMEH DY
EXFIERRE

HE-_ZT - N\F+ZA=+—HBLFE
A NMEERN G LAEBERKE(E
R BEARBEBBEER  BFR
BEAARBESNALTHEBBEER (R
BARRPDER) EETEEERURERE
AMNEBENEARS - ZHFMEL -

37. BBRMTERFE

EEZRR_ZE-NAFOA=1THEBAREH
B -

36.

37.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018, there
subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Company's business, to which any
member of the Group was a party, and in which any person who
was a director of the Company at any time during the year or a
connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
such person had, directly or indirectly, a material interest.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 30 April 2019.
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